

905.331, 905.36, 905.50, 905.51, 905.52, 905.56, 907.13,
907.14, 907.30, 907.31, 915.24, 918.08, 918.28, 921.02,
921.06, 921.09, 921.11, 921.13, 921.16, 921.22, 921.27,
921.29, 923.44, 923.46, 927.51, 927.52, 927.53, 927.56,
927.69, 927.70, 927.701, 927.71, 942.01, 942.02, 942.06,
942.13, 943.01, 943.02, 943.04, 943.05, 943.06, 943.07,
943.13, 943.14, 943.16, 953.21, 953.22, 953.23, 955.201,
1321.20, 1321.51, 1321.52, 1321.53, 1321.54, 1321.55,
1321.551, 1321.57, 1321.59, 1321.60, 1321.99, 1322.01,
1322.02, 1322.03, 1322.031, 1322.04, 1322.041, 1322.05,
1322.051, 1322.052, 1322.06, 1322.061, 1322.062,
1322.063, 1322.064, 1322.07, 1322.071, 1322.072,
1322.074, 1322.075, 1322.08, 1322.081, 1322.09,
1322.10, 1322.11, 1322.99, 1332.24, 1332.25, 1343.011,
1345.01, 1345.05, 1345.09, 1347.08, 1349.31, 1349.43,
1501.01, 1501.05, 1501.07, 1501.30, 1502.12, 1506.01,
1507.01, 1511.01, 1511.02, 1511.021, 1511.022, 1511.03,
1511.04, 1511.05, 1511.06, 1511.07, 1511.071, 1511.08,
1514.08, 1514.10, 1514.13, 1515.08, 1515.14, 1515.183,
1517.02, 1517.10, 1517.11, 1517.14, 1517.16, 1517.17,
1517.18, 1519.03, 1520.02, 1520.03, 1521.03, 1521.031,
1521.04, 1521.05, 1521.06, 1521.061, 1521.062,
1521.063, 1521.064, 1521.07, 1521.10, 1521.11, 1521.12,
1521.13, 1521.14, 1521.15, 1521.16, 1521.18, 1521.19,
1523.01, 1523.02, 1523.03, 1523.04, 1523.05, 1523.06,
1523.07, 1523.08, 1523.09, 1523.10, 1523.11, 1523.12,
1523.13, 1523.14, 1523.15, 1523.16, 1523.17, 1523.18,
1523.19, 1523.20, 1533.11, 1541.03, 1547.01, 1547.51,
1547.52, 1547.531, 1547.54, 1547.542, 1547.73, 1547.99,
1548.10, 1707.17, 1707.18, 1707.37, 1710.01, 1710.02,
1710.03, 1710.04, 1710.06, 1710.07, 1710.10, 1710.13,
1721.211, 1724.02, 1724.04, 1733.26, 1739.05, 1751.03.

1751.04, 1751.05, 1751.14, 1751.15, 1751.16, 1751.18,
 1751.19, 1751.32, 1751.321, 1751.34, 1751.35, 1751.36,
 1751.45, 1751.46, 1751.48, 1751.831, 1751.84, 1751.85,
 1753.09, 1901.121, 1901.26, 1901.31, 1907.14, 1907.24,
 2101.01, 2301.02, 2301.03, 2303.201, 2305.234,
 2317.422, 2503.17, 2505.09, 2505.12, 2743.51, 2744.05, *JK*
 2903.214, 2903.33, 2907.27, 2911.21, 2913.46, 2915.01,
 2921.13, 2921.51, 2923.125, 2923.1210, 2923.1213,
 2923.16, 2937.22, 2949.091, 2949.111, 2949.17, 2981.13,
 3105.87, 3111.04, 3119.01, 3119.54, 3121.03, 3121.035,
 3121.037, 3121.0311, 3121.19, 3121.20, 3121.898,
 3123.952, 3125.25, 3301.07, 3301.075, 3301.079,
 3301.0710, 3301.0711, 3301.0714, 3301.0715,
 3301.0716, 3301.0718, 3301.12, 3301.16, 3301.42,
 3301.46, 3301.55, 3301.57, 3302.01, 3302.02, 3302.021,
 3302.03, 3302.031, 3302.05, 3302.07, 3304.16, 3304.231,
 3307.31, 3307.64, 3309.41, 3309.48, 3309.51, 3310.03,
 3310.08, 3310.09, 3310.11, 3310.14, 3310.41, 3311.059, *JK*
 3311.06, 3311.19, 3311.21, 3311.29, 3311.52, 3311.76,
 3313.483, 3313.53, 3313.532, 3313.536, 3313.55,
 3313.60, 3313.602, 3313.603, 3313.605, 3313.608,
 3313.6013, 3313.61, 3313.611, 3313.612, 3313.614,
 3313.615, 3313.64, 3313.642, 3313.6410, 3313.65,
 3313.713, 3313.843, 3313.976, 3313.978, 3313.98, *JK*
 3313.981, 3314.012, 3314.015, 3314.016, 3314.02,
 3314.021, 3314.03, 3314.08, 3314.085, 3314.087,
 3314.091, 3314.10, 3314.13, 3314.19, 3314.25, 3314.26,
 3314.35, 3314.36, 3315.37, 3316.041, 3316.06, 3316.20,
 3317.01, 3317.011, 3317.013, 3317.02, 3317.021,
 3317.022, 3317.023, 3317.024, 3317.025, 3317.0210,
 3317.0211, 3317.0216, 3317.03, 3317.031, 3317.04,
 3317.061, 3317.063, 3317.08, 3317.081, 3317.082,

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Jed Strickland

3317.12, 3317.16, 3317.18, 3317.20, 3317.201, 3318.011, *JS*
3318.051, 3318.061, 3318.36, 3318.38, 3318.44,
3319.073, 3319.08, 3319.081, 3319.088, 3319.11,
3319.151, 3319.16, 3319.161, 3319.22, 3319.221,
3319.233, 3319.234, 3319.235, 3319.24, 3319.25,
3319.26, 3319.28, 3319.291, 3319.303, 3319.36,
3319.391, 3319.41, 3319.51, 3319.56, 3319.57, 3319.60,
3319.61, 3319.63, 3321.01, 3321.05, 3323.05, 3323.091,
3323.14, 3323.142, 3324.05, 3325.08, 3326.02, 3326.03,
3326.04, 3326.05, 3326.06, 3326.07, 3326.08, 3326.11,
3326.14, 3326.20, 3326.23, 3326.33, 3326.36, 3326.37,
3326.51, 3327.02, 3327.04, 3327.05, 3327.10, 3329.16,
3333.04, 3333.122, 3333.123, 3333.16, 3333.28, 3333.35,
3333.38, 3333.42, 3333.61, 3333.62, 3333.66, 3334.03,
3334.07, 3334.08, 3334.11, 3334.12, 3343.04, 3345.011,
3345.062, 3345.12, 3345.32, 3345.61, 3345.62, 3345.63,
3345.64, 3345.65, 3345.66, 3349.242, 3351.07, 3354.26,
3365.01, 3365.04, 3365.041, 3365.07, 3365.08, 3365.09,
3365.10, 3501.17, 3503.18, 3503.21, 3701.045, 3701.07,
3701.242, 3701.247, 3701.344, 3701.78, 3702.30,
3702.51, 3702.52, 3702.524, 3702.525, 3702.53,
3702.532, 3702.54, 3702.544, 3702.55, 3702.57, 3702.59,
3702.60, 3702.61, 3702.74, 3702.87, 3702.89, 3702.90,
3702.91, 3702.92, 3702.93, 3702.94, 3703.01, 3703.03,
3703.04, 3703.05, 3703.06, 3703.07, 3703.08, 3703.10,
3703.21, 3703.99, 3704.03, 3704.14, 3704.144, 3705.03, *JS*
3705.24, 3706.04, 3706.25, 3707.26, 3709.09, 3712.01,
3712.03, 3713.01, 3713.02, 3713.03, 3713.04, 3713.05,
3713.06, 3713.07, 3713.08, 3713.09, 3713.10, 3714.03,
3714.07, 3715.87, 3715.871, 3715.873, 3717.07, 3717.23,
3717.25, 3717.43, 3717.45, 3718.03, 3718.06, 3721.01,
3721.02, 3721.071, 3721.23, 3721.50, 3721.51, 3721.53.

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

3721.55, 3721.56, 3722.01, 3722.011, 3722.02, 3722.021,
3722.04, 3722.041, 3722.05, 3722.06, 3722.08, 3722.09,
3722.10, 3722.13, 3722.14, 3722.15, 3722.16, 3722.17,
3722.18, 3722.99, 3727.02, 3729.07, 3733.02, 3733.04,
3733.25, 3733.43, 3734.05, 3734.28, 3734.281, 3734.53,
3734.57, 3734.573, 3734.82, 3734.901, 3734.9010,
3737.71, 3743.04, 3743.25, 3745.015, 3745.05, 3745.11,
3748.01, 3748.04, 3748.07, 3748.12, 3748.13, 3749.04,
3767.41, 3770.03, 3770.05, 3773.35, 3773.36, 3773.43,
3773.45, 3773.53, 3781.03, 3781.07, 3781.10, 3781.102,
3781.11, 3781.12, 3781.19, 3783.05, 3791.02, 3791.04,
3791.05, 3791.07, 3793.02, 3793.04, 3901.381,
3901.3812, 3923.021, 3923.022, 3923.11, 3923.122,
3923.24, 3923.58, 3923.581, 3923.66, 3923.67, 3923.68,
3923.75, 3923.76, 3923.77, 3924.06, 3929.43, 3937.41,
3951.01, 4104.01, 4104.02, 4104.06, 4104.07, 4104.08,
4104.09, 4104.10, 4104.101, 4104.12, 4104.15, 4104.16,
4104.17, 4104.18, 4104.19, 4104.21, 4104.33, 4104.42,
4104.43, 4104.44, 4104.48, 4105.01, 4105.02, 4105.03,
4105.04, 4105.05, 4105.06, 4105.09, 4105.11, 4105.12,
4105.13, 4105.15, 4105.16, 4105.17, 4105.191, 4105.20,
4105.21, 4112.01, 4112.04, 4112.05, 4112.051, 4117.01,
4117.02, 4117.07, 4117.12, 4117.24, 4123.27, 4141.01,
4141.08, 4141.162, 4141.31, 4169.02, 4169.03, 4169.04,
4171.04, 4301.333, 4301.334, 4301.351, 4301.354,
4301.355, 4301.356, 4301.361, 4301.364, 4301.365,
4301.366, 4301.43, 4303.181, 4303.182, 4303.331,
4501.06, 4501.24, 4501.271, 4503.068, 4503.10,
4503.103, 4503.182, 4503.19, 4503.191, 4503.235,
4503.40, 4503.42, 4503.44, 4505.01, 4505.06, 4505.062,
4505.09, 4505.111, 4505.181, 4505.20, 4507.02, 4507.03,
4507.23, 4507.24, 4507.45, 4509.101, 4510.11, 4510.12,

4510.16, 4510.22, 4511.191, 4511.69, 4513.021, 4513.03, *JS*
 4513.04, 4513.05, 4513.06, 4513.07, 4513.071, 4513.09,
 4513.11, 4513.111, 4513.12, 4513.13, 4513.14, 4513.15,
 4513.16, 4513.17, 4513.171, 4513.18, 4513.19, 4513.21,
 4513.22, 4513.23, 4513.24, 4513.242, 4513.28, 4513.60,
 4513.65, 4513.99, 4517.01, 4517.02, 4517.03, 4517.30,
 4517.33, 4517.43, 4519.02, 4519.03, 4519.04, 4519.44,
 4519.59, 4549.10, 4549.12, 4582.07, 4582.08, 4582.32,
 4582.33, 4709.12, 4713.32, 4713.63, 4713.64, 4717.31,
 4729.42, 4729.99, 4731.10, 4731.26, 4731.38, 4731.65,
 4731.71, 4733.10, 4734.25, 4735.06, 4735.09, 4735.12,
 4735.13, 4735.15, 4736.01, 4740.03, 4740.11, 4740.14,
 4741.41, 4741.44, 4741.45, 4741.46, 4751.07, 4755.06,
 4755.12, 4757.10, 4757.31, 4757.36, 4763.01, 4763.03,
 4763.04, 4763.05, 4763.06, 4763.07, 4763.09, 4763.11,
 4763.13, 4763.14, 4763.17, 4765.11, 4765.17, 4765.23,
 4765.30, 4766.09, 4767.05, 4767.07, 4767.08, 4776.02,
 4781.01, 4781.02, 4781.04, 4781.05, 4781.06, 4781.07,
 4905.801, 4928.01, 5101.11, 5101.16, 5101.162,
 5101.181, 5101.24, 5101.26, 5101.31, 5101.33, 5101.34,
 5101.36, 5101.47, 5101.50, 5101.5212, 5101.5213, *JS*
 5101.54, 5101.541, 5101.544, 5101.571, 5101.573,
 5101.58, 5101.60, 5101.61, 5101.84, 5103.02, 5103.03, *JS*
 5104.04, 5104.041, 5104.051, 5104.30, 5104.32,
 5104.341, 5104.35, 5104.39, 5104.42, 5107.05, 5107.16,
 5107.17, 5107.78, 5108.04, 5108.07, 5111.01, 5111.028,
 5111.032, 5111.033, 5111.034, 5111.06, 5111.084,
 5111.16, 5111.176, 5111.20, 5111.21, 5111.211,
 5111.231, 5111.232, 5111.24, 5111.243, 5111.25,
 5111.261, 5111.65, 5111.651, 5111.68, 5111.681, *JS*
5111.685, 5111.686, 5111.688, 5111.705, 5111.85,
 5111.851, 5111.874, 5111.875, 5111.89, 5111.891,

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

5111.894, 5111.971, 5112.03, 5112.08, 5112.17, 5112.30,
 5112.31, 5112.37, 5112.39, 5115.20, 5115.22, 5115.23,
 5119.16, 5119.61, 5120.032, 5120.033, 5120.09, 5122.31,
 5123.049, 5123.0412, 5123.0413, 5123.0417, 5123.19,
 5126.044, 5126.05, 5126.054, 5126.055, 5126.0512,
 5126.19, 5126.24, 5139.43, 5153.163, 5501.04, 5502.01,
 5502.12, 5502.14, 5502.15, 5505.15, 5701.11, 5703.21,
 5703.37, 5703.80, 5705.01, 5705.211, 5705.214, 5705.25,
 5705.29, 5705.341, 5705.37, 5709.62, 5709.63, 5709.632,
 5711.33, 5715.02, 5715.251, 5715.26, 5717.03, 5717.04,
5721.01, 5721.32, 5721.33, 5722.02, 5722.04, 5722.21,
 5723.04, 5725.18, 5725.98, 5727.81, 5727.811, 5727.84,
 5728.12, 5729.03, 5729.98, 5733.01, 5733.04, 5733.47,
 5733.98, 5735.142, 5739.01, 5739.02, 5739.03, 5739.033,
 5739.09, 5739.131, 5743.15, 5743.61, 5747.01, 5747.13,
 5747.16, 5747.18, 5747.76, 5747.98, 5748.02, 5748.03,
 5749.02, 5749.12, 5751.01, 5751.011, 5751.012,
 5751.013, 5751.02, 5751.03, 5751.04, 5751.05, 5751.051,
 5751.06, 5751.08, 5751.09, 5751.20, 5751.21, **5751.22**,
5751.23, 5911.10, 5913.051, 5913.09, 6103.01, 6103.02,
 6109.21, 6111.04, 6111.044, 6111.44, 6117.01, 6117.02,
 6119.011, and 6301.03; to amend, for the purpose of
 adopting new section numbers as indicated in
 parentheses, sections 173.43 (173.422), 1517.14
 (1547.81), 1517.16 (1547.82), 1517.17 (1547.83),
 1517.18, (1547.84), 3313.174 (3313.82), 3319.233
 (3333.049), **5101.5110** (5101.5111), 5111.019
 (5111.0120), and **5111.688** (5111.689); to enact new
 sections 173.43, 3301.0712, 3319.222, **5101.5110**,
5111.688, and 5112.371 and sections 5.2265, 9.317,
 103.24, 107.19, 111.26, 111.27, 121.375, 122.042,
 122.12, 122.121, 122.85, 124.395.

JS

JS
JS

JS
JS
JS
JS

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

124.86, 125.181, 125.20, 126.10, 126.50, 126.501, *W*
 126.502, 126.503, 126.504, 126.505, 126.506, 126.507,
 131.38, 133.022, 148.05, 150.051, 153.013, 166.22,
 166.28, 173.28, 173.402, 173.403, 173.421, 173.423,
 173.424, 173.425, 173.431, 173.432, 173.433, 173.434,
 173.501, 173.70, 175.052, 175.30, 175.31, 175.32,
305.20, 319.24, 717.25, 901.041, 901.91, 927.54, *W*
 943.031, 1321.521, 1321.522, 1321.531, 1321.532,
 1321.533, 1321.534, 1321.535, 1321.536, 1321.552,
 1321.591, 1321.592, 1321.593, 1321.594, 1322.022,
 1322.023, 1322.024, 1322.025, 1322.065, 1547.02,
 1547.85, 1547.86, 1547.87, 1733.252, 2505.122, *W*
 3119.371, 3301.041, 3301.076, 3301.0719, 3301.0721,
 3301.122, 3301.60, 3301.61, 3301.62, 3301.63, 3301.64,
 3301.82, 3301.90, 3301.95, 3304.181, 3304.182, 3306.01,
 3306.011, 3306.012, 3306.02, 3306.03, 3306.04, 3306.05,
 3306.051, 3306.052, 3306.06, 3306.07, 3306.08, 3306.09,
 3306.091, 3306.10, 3306.11, 3306.12, 3306.13, 3306.18,
 3306.19, 3306.191, 3306.192, 3306.21, 3306.22, 3306.25,
 3306.29, 3306.291, 3306.292, 3306.30, 3306.31, 3306.33,
 3306.34, 3306.35, 3306.40, 3306.50, 3306.51, 3306.52,
 3306.53, 3306.54, 3306.55, 3306.56, 3306.57, 3306.58,
 3310.15, 3311.0510, 3313.6015, 3313.719, 3313.821, *W*
 3313.822, 3313.83, 3313.86, 3314.028, 3314.088,
 3314.44, 3317.018, 3318.312, 3319.223, 3319.611,
 3319.612, 3319.70, 3319.71, 3321.041, 3326.39,
 3333.048, 3333.39, 3333.391, 3333.392, 3333.90,
 3334.111, 3345.36, 3353.09, 3353.20, 3354.24, 3365.12,
 3375.79, 3701.0211, 3701.136, 3701.611, 3702.592, *W*
 3702.593, 3702.594, 3705.031, 3709.092, 3715.041, *W*
 3721.511, 3721.512, 3721.513, 3722.022, 3734.282,
 3770.21, 3793.21, 3903.77, 3923.241, 3923.582, 3923.90

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

3923.91, 4113.11, 4123.446, 4301.85, 4501.243, 4501.29, *JS*
 4503.548, 4503.563, 4582.71, 4755.061, 4781.16,
 4781.17, 4781.18, 4781.19, 4781.20, 4781.21, 4781.22,
 4781.23, 4781.24, 4781.25, 4781.99, 5101.073, 5101.504, *JS*
5101.5210, 5101.542, 5111.0121, 5111.0210, 5111.092, *JS*
 5111.233, 5111.236, 5111.262, 5111.861, 5111.88, *JS*
 5111.881, 5111.882, 5111.883, 5111.884, 5111.885,
 5111.886, 5111.887, 5111.888, 5111.889, 5111.8810,
 5111.8811, 5112.40, 5112.41, 5112.42, 5112.43, 5112.44,
 5112.45, 5112.46, 5112.47, 5112.48, 5119.613, 5119.621,
 5123.193, 5123.197, 5155.38, 5505.152, 5525.26,
5537.051, 5705.219, 5705.2110, 5705.2111, 5725.33, *JS*
 5729.16, 5733.58, 5733.59, 5739.051, 5747.66, 5751.014,
 5911.11, 5919.20, 5919.36, and 6119.091; to repeal
 sections 117.102, 173.71, 173.72, 173.721, 173.722,
 173.723, 173.724, 173.73, 173.731, 173.732, 173.74,
 173.741, 173.742, 173.75, 173.751, 173.752, 173.753,
 173.76, 173.77, 173.771, 173.772, 173.773, 173.78,
 173.79, 173.791, 173.80, 173.801, 173.802, 173.803,
 173.81, 173.811, 173.812, 173.813, 173.814, 173.815,
 173.82, 173.83, 173.831, 173.832, 173.833, 173.84,
 173.85, 173.86, 173.861, 173.87, 173.871, 173.872,
 173.873, 173.874, 173.875, 173.876, 173.88, 173.89,
 173.891, 173.892, 173.90, 173.91, 905.38, 905.381,
 905.66, 907.16, 927.74, 1504.01, 1504.02, 1504.03,
 1504.04, 1517.15, 1521.02, 1711.58, 3301.0712, 3301.41,
 3301.42, 3301.43, 3302.032, 3313.473, 3314.15,
 3319.0810, 3319.222, 3319.23, 3319.261, 3319.302,
 3319.304, 3333.27, 3701.77, 3701.771, 3701.772,
 3701.93, 3701.931, 3701.932, 3701.933, 3701.934,
 3701.935, 3701.936, 3702.511, 3702.523, 3702.527,
 3702.528, 3702.529, 3702.542, **The above boxed and initialed text was
 disapproved.**

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

3724.02, 3724.021, 3724.03, 3724.04, 3724.05, 3724.06, 3724.07, 3724.08, 3724.09, 3724.10, 3724.11, 3724.12, 3724.13, 3724.99, 4517.052, 4517.27, 4735.22, 4735.23, 5101.072, 5103.54, 5111.263, 5112.371, 5115.10, 5115.11, 5112.12, 5115.13, 5115.14, 5145.32, and 5923.141 of the Revised Code; to amend Sections 205.10, 321.10, 325.20, and 327.10 of Am. Sub. H.B. 2 of the 128th General Assembly; to amend Section 309.10 of Am. Sub. H.B. 2 of the 128th General Assembly; to amend Section 317.10 of Am. Sub. H.B. 2 of the 128th General Assembly; to amend Sections 120.01 and 120.02 of Am. Sub. H.B. 119 of the 127th General Assembly; to amend Sections 103.80.80, 103.80.90, 301.10.50, and 301.30.30 of H.B. 496 of the 127th General Assembly; to amend Sections 301.20.20 and 301.60.50 of H.B. 496 of the 127th General Assembly, as subsequently amended; to amend Section 11 of Am. Sub. H.B. 554 of the 127th General Assembly; to amend Sections 233.30.20, 233.30.50, 233.40.30, 235.10, and 701.20 of H.B. 562 of the 127th General Assembly; to amend Sections 227.10 and 233.50.80 of H.B. 562 of the 127th General Assembly, as subsequently amended; to amend Sections 217.11 and 231.20.30 of Am. Sub. H.B. 562 of the 127th General Assembly, as subsequently amended; to amend Section 831.06 of H.B. 530 of the 126th General Assembly; to amend Section 4 of H.B. 516 of the 125th General Assembly, as subsequently amended; to amend Section 6 of H.B. 364 of the 124th General Assembly and to amend Section 6 of H.B. 364 of the 124th General Assembly to codify the Section as section 3314.027 of the Revised Code; to amend Section 153 of Am. Sub. H.B. 117 of the 121st General Assembly, as subsequently

amended; to repeal Section 3 of Am. Sub. H.B. 203 of the 126th General Assembly; to repeal Section 325.05 of Am. Sub. H.B. 2 of the 128th General Assembly; to further amend sections 711.001, 711.05, 711.10, 711.131, 4736.01, 6111.04, and 6111.44 of the Revised Code effective January 1, 2010; to amend the version of section 2949.111 of the Revised Code that is scheduled to take effect January 1, 2010, to continue the provisions of this act on and after that effective date; to amend the version of section 5739.033 of the Revised Code that is scheduled to take effect January 1, 2010, to continue the provisions of this act on and after that effective date; to repeal sections 5112.40, 5112.41, 5112.42, 5112.43, 5112.44, 5112.45, 5112.46, 5112.47, and 5112.48 of the Revised Code, effective October 1, 2011; to repeal the version of sections 1753.53 and 3923.38 of the Revised Code that were scheduled to take effect January 1, 2010; to make operating appropriations for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011, and to provide authorization and conditions for the operation of state programs.

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Ohio:

SECTION 101.01. That sections 7.12. 9.06, 9.24, 9.314, 101.34, 101.72, 102.02, 105.41. 107.21, 107.40. 109.57, 109.572, 109.73, 109.731, 109.742, 109.744, 109.751, 109.761, 109.77, 109.802, 109.803, 117.13. 118.05, 120.08, 121.04, 121.07, 121.08, 121.083, 121.084, 121.31, 121.37, 121.40, 121.401, 121.402, 122.011, 122.05, 122.051, 122.075, 122.151, 122.17, 122.171, 122.40, 122.603, 122.71, 122.751, 122.76, 122.89, 123.01, 124.03, 124.04, 124.07, 124.11, 124.134, 124.14, 124.152, 124.181, 124.183, 124.22, 124.23, 124.27, 124.321, 124.324, 124.325. 124.34, 124.381, 124.382, 124.385, 124.386, 124.392, 124.81, 125.11. 125.18, 125.831, 126.05, 126.21, 126.35, 127.16, 131.23, 131.33, 133.01, 133.02, 133.06,

Handwritten initials: H, H, H

Handwritten initials: H

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

133.18, 133.20, 133.21, 133.34, 135.03, 135.06, 135.08, 135.32, 141.04, 145.012, 145.298, 148.02, 148.04, 149.43, 149.45, 150.01, 150.02, 150.03, 150.04, 150.05, 150.07, 152.09, 152.10, 152.12, 152.15, 152.33, 156.01, 156.02, 156.03, 156.04, 166.02, 166.07, 166.08, 166.11, 166.25, 169.08, 173.08, 173.35, 173.392, 173.40, 173.401, 173.42, 173.43, 173.50, 173.71, 173.76, 173.99, 174.02, 174.03, 174.06, 175.01, 176.05, 303.213, 307.626, 307.629, 307.79, 311.17, 311.42, 319.28, 319.301, 319.302, 319.54, 321.24, 321.261, 323.01, 323.121, 323.156, 323.73, 323.74, 323.77, 323.78, 329.03, 329.04, 329.042, 329.051, 329.06, 340.033, 343.01, 351.01, 351.021, 504.21, 505.82, 711.001, 711.05, 711.10, 711.131, 718.04, 721.15, 901.20, 901.32, 901.43, 903.082, 903.11, 903.25, 905.32, 905.33, 905.331, 905.36, 905.50, 905.51, 905.52, 905.56, 907.13, 907.14, 907.30, 907.31, 915.24, 918.08, 918.28, 921.02, 921.06, 921.09, 921.11, 921.13, 921.16, 921.22, 921.27, 921.29, 923.44, 923.46, 927.51, 927.52, 927.53, 927.56, 927.69, 927.70, 927.701, 927.71, 942.01, 942.02, 942.06, 942.13, 943.01, 943.02, 943.04, 943.05, 943.06, 943.07, 943.13, 943.14, 943.16, 953.21, 953.22, 953.23, 955.201, 1321.20, 1321.51, 1321.52, 1321.53, 1321.54, 1321.55, 1321.551, 1321.57, 1321.59, 1321.60, 1321.99, 1322.01, 1322.02, 1322.03, 1322.031, 1322.04, 1322.041, 1322.05, 1322.051, 1322.052, 1322.06, 1322.061, 1322.062, 1322.063, 1322.064, 1322.07, 1322.071, 1322.072, 1322.074, 1322.075, 1322.08, 1322.081, 1322.09, 1322.10, 1322.11, 1322.99, 1332.24, 1332.25, 1343.011, 1345.01, 1345.05, 1345.09, 1347.08, 1349.31, 1349.43, 1501.01, 1501.05, 1501.07, 1501.30, 1502.12, 1506.01, 1507.01, 1511.01, 1511.02, 1511.021, 1511.022, 1511.03, 1511.04, 1511.05, 1511.06, 1511.07, 1511.071, 1511.08, 1514.08, 1514.10, 1514.13, 1515.08, 1515.14, 1515.183, 1517.02, 1517.10, 1517.11, 1517.14, 1517.16, 1517.17, 1517.18, 1519.03, 1520.02, 1520.03, 1521.03, 1521.031, 1521.04, 1521.05, 1521.06, 1521.061, 1521.062, 1521.063, 1521.064, 1521.07, 1521.10, 1521.11, 1521.12, 1521.13, 1521.14, 1521.15, 1521.16, 1521.18, 1521.19, 1523.01, 1523.02, 1523.03, 1523.04, 1523.05, 1523.06, 1523.07, 1523.08, 1523.09, 1523.10, 1523.11, 1523.12, 1523.13, 1523.14, 1523.15, 1523.16, 1523.17, 1523.18, 1523.19, 1523.20, 1533.11, 1541.03, 1547.01, 1547.51, 1547.52, 1547.531, 1547.54, 1547.542, 1547.73, 1547.99, 1548.10, 1707.17, 1707.18, 1707.37, 1710.01, 1710.02, 1710.03, 1710.04, 1710.06, 1710.07, 1710.10, 1710.13, 1721.211, 1724.02, 1724.04, 1733.26, 1739.05, 1751.03, 1751.04, 1751.05, 1751.14, 1751.15, 1751.16, 1751.18, 1751.19, 1751.32, 1751.321, 1751.34, 1751.35, 1751.36, 1751.45, 1751.46, 1751.48, 1751.831, 1751.84, 1751.85, 1753.09, 1901.121, 1901.26, 1901.31, 1907.14, 1907.24, 2101.01, 2301.02, 2301.03, 2303.201, 2305.234, 2317.422, 2503.17.

2505.09, 2505.12, 2743.51, 2744.05, 2903.214, 2903.33, 2907.27, 2911.21, #
 2913.46, 2915.01, 2921.13, 2921.51, 2923.125, 2923.1210, 2923.1213,
 2923.16, 2937.22, 2949.091, 2949.111, 2949.17, 2981.13, 3105.87, 3111.04,
 3119.01, 3119.54, 3121.03, 3121.035, 3121.037, 3121.0311, 3121.19,
 3121.20, 3121.898, 3123.952, 3125.25, 3301.07, 3301.075, 3301.079,
 3301.0710, 3301.0711, 3301.0714, 3301.0715, 3301.0716, 3301.0718,
 3301.12, 3301.16, 3301.42, 3301.46, 3301.55, 3301.57, 3302.01, 3302.02,
 3302.021, 3302.03, 3302.031, 3302.05, 3302.07, 3304.16, 3304.231,
 3307.31, 3307.64, 3309.41, 3309.48, 3309.51, 3310.03, 3310.08, 3310.09,
 3310.11, 3310.14, 3310.41, 3311.059, 3311.06, 3311.19, 3311.21, 3311.29, #
 3311.52, 3311.76, 3313.483, 3313.53, 3313.532, 3313.536, 3313.55,
 3313.60, 3313.602, 3313.603, 3313.605, 3313.608, 3313.6013, 3313.61,
 3313.611, 3313.612, 3313.614, 3313.615, 3313.64, 3313.642, 3313.6410,
 3313.65, 3313.713, 3313.843, 3313.976, 3313.978, 3313.98, 3313.981, #
 3314.012, 3314.015, 3314.016, 3314.02, 3314.021, 3314.03, 3314.08,
 3314.085, 3314.087, 3314.091, 3314.10, 3314.13, 3314.19, 3314.25,
 3314.26, 3314.35, 3314.36, 3315.37, 3316.041, 3316.06, 3316.20, 3317.01,
 3317.011, 3317.013, 3317.02, 3317.021, 3317.022, 3317.023, 3317.024,
 3317.025, 3317.0210, 3317.0211, 3317.0216, 3317.03, 3317.031, 3317.04,
 3317.061, 3317.063, 3317.08, 3317.081, 3317.082, 3317.12, 3317.16,
 3317.18, 3317.20, 3317.201, 3318.011, 3318.051, 3318.061, 3318.36, #
 3318.38, 3318.44, 3319.073, 3319.08, 3319.081, 3319.088, 3319.11,
 3319.151, 3319.16, 3319.161, 3319.22, 3319.221, 3319.233, 3319.234,
 3319.235, 3319.24, 3319.25, 3319.26, 3319.28, 3319.291, 3319.303,
 3319.36, 3319.391, 3319.41, 3319.51, 3319.56, 3319.57, 3319.60, 3319.61,
 3319.63, 3321.01, 3321.05, 3323.05, 3323.091, 3323.14, 3323.142, 3324.05,
 3325.08, 3326.02, 3326.03, 3326.04, 3326.05, 3326.06, 3326.07, 3326.08,
 3326.11, 3326.14, 3326.20, 3326.23, 3326.33, 3326.36, 3326.37, 3326.51,
 3327.02, 3327.04, 3327.05, 3327.10, 3329.16, 3333.04, 3333.122, 3333.123,
 3333.16, 3333.28, 3333.35, 3333.38, 3333.42, 3333.61, 3333.62, 3333.66,
 3334.03, 3334.07, 3334.08, 3334.11, 3334.12, 3343.04, 3345.011, 3345.062,
 3345.12, 3345.32, 3345.61, 3345.62, 3345.63, 3345.64, 3345.65, 3345.66,
 3349.242, 3351.07, 3354.26, 3365.01, 3365.04, 3365.041, 3365.07, 3365.08,
 3365.09, 3365.10, 3501.17, 3503.18, 3503.21, 3701.045, 3701.07, 3701.242,
 3701.247, 3701.344, 3701.78, 3702.30, 3702.51, 3702.52, 3702.524,
 3702.525, 3702.53, 3702.532, 3702.54, 3702.544, 3702.55, 3702.57,
 3702.59, 3702.60, 3702.61, 3702.74, 3702.87, 3702.89, 3702.90, 3702.91,
 3702.92, 3702.93, 3702.94, 3703.01, 3703.03, 3703.04, 3703.05, 3703.06,
 3703.07, 3703.08, 3703.10, 3703.21, 3703.99, 3704.03, 3704.14, 3704.144,

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ed Strickland

3705.03 3705.24, 3706.04, 3706.25, 3707.26, 3709.09, 3712.01, 3712.03, ²⁸
 3713.01, 3713.02, 3713.03, 3713.04, 3713.05, 3713.06, 3713.07, 3713.08,
 3713.09, 3713.10, 3714.03, 3714.07, 3715.87, 3715.871, 3715.873, 3717.07,
 3717.23, 3717.25, 3717.43, 3717.45, 3718.03, 3718.06, 3721.01, 3721.02,
 3721.071, 3721.23, 3721.50, 3721.51, 3721.53, 3721.55, 3721.56, 3722.01,
 3722.011, 3722.02, 3722.021, 3722.04, 3722.041, 3722.05, 3722.06,
 3722.08, 3722.09, 3722.10, 3722.13, 3722.14, 3722.15, 3722.16, 3722.17,
 3722.18, 3722.99, 3727.02, 3729.07, 3733.02, 3733.04, 3733.25, 3733.43,
 3734.05, 3734.28, 3734.281, 3734.53, 3734.57, 3734.573, 3734.82,
 3734.901, 3734.9010, 3737.71, 3743.04, 3743.25, 3745.015, 3745.05,
 3745.11, 3748.01, 3748.04, 3748.07, 3748.12, 3748.13, 3749.04, 3767.41,
 3770.03, 3770.05, 3773.35, 3773.36, 3773.43, 3773.45, 3773.53, 3781.03,
 3781.07, 3781.10, 3781.102, 3781.11, 3781.12, 3781.19, 3783.05, 3791.02,
 3791.04, 3791.05, 3791.07, 3793.02, 3793.04, 3901.381, 3901.3812,
 3923.021, 3923.022, 3923.11, 3923.122, 3923.24, 3923.58, 3923.581,
 3923.66, 3923.67, 3923.68, 3923.75, 3923.76, 3923.77, 3924.06, 3929.43,
 3937.41, 3951.01, 4104.01, 4104.02, 4104.06, 4104.07, 4104.08, 4104.09,
 4104.10, 4104.101, 4104.12, 4104.15, 4104.16, 4104.17, 4104.18, 4104.19,
 4104.21, 4104.33, 4104.42, 4104.43, 4104.44, 4104.48, 4105.01, 4105.02,
 4105.03, 4105.04, 4105.05, 4105.06, 4105.09, 4105.11, 4105.12, 4105.13,
 4105.15, 4105.16, 4105.17, 4105.191, 4105.20, 4105.21, 4112.01, 4112.04,
 4112.05, 4112.051, 4117.01, 4117.02, 4117.07, 4117.12, 4117.24, 4123.27,
 4141.01, 4141.08, 4141.162, 4141.31, 4169.02, 4169.03, 4169.04, 4171.04,
 4301.333, 4301.334, 4301.351, 4301.354, 4301.355, 4301.356, 4301.361,
 4301.364, 4301.365, 4301.366, 4301.43, 4303.181, 4303.182, 4303.331,
 4501.06, 4501.24, 4501.271, 4503.068, 4503.10, 4503.103, 4503.182,
 4503.19, 4503.191, 4503.235, 4503.40, 4503.42, 4503.44, 4505.01, 4505.06,
 4505.062, 4505.09, 4505.111, 4505.181, 4505.20, 4507.02, 4507.03,
 4507.23, 4507.24, 4507.45, 4509.101, 4510.11, 4510.12, 4510.16, 4510.22,
 4511.191, 4511.69, 4513.021, 4513.03, 4513.04, 4513.05, 4513.06, 4513.07, ²⁸
 4513.071, 4513.09, 4513.11, 4513.111, 4513.12, 4513.13, 4513.14, 4513.15,
 4513.16, 4513.17, 4513.171, 4513.18, 4513.19, 4513.21, 4513.22, 4513.23,
 4513.24, 4513.242, 4513.28, 4513.60, 4513.65, 4513.99, 4517.01, 4517.02,
 4517.03, 4517.30, 4517.33, 4517.43, 4519.02, 4519.03, 4519.04, 4519.44,
 4519.59, 4549.10, 4549.12, 4582.07, 4582.08, 4582.32, 4582.33, 4709.12,
 4713.32, 4713.63, 4713.64, 4717.31, 4729.42, 4729.99, 4731.10, 4731.26,
 4731.38, 4731.65, 4731.71, 4733.10, 4734.25, 4735.06, 4735.09, 4735.12,
 4735.13, 4735.15, 4736.01, 4740.03, 4740.11, 4740.14, 4741.41, 4741.44,
 4741.45, 4741.46, 4751.07, 4755.06, 4755.12, 4757.10, 4757.31, 4757.311

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

4763.01, 4763.03, 4763.04, 4763.05, 4763.06, 4763.07, 4763.09, 4763.11, 4763.13, 4763.14, 4763.17, 4765.11, 4765.17, 4765.23, 4765.30, 4766.09, 4767.05, 4767.07, 4767.08, 4776.02, 4781.01, 4781.02, 4781.04, 4781.05, 4781.06, 4781.07, 4905.801, 4928.01, 5101.11, 5101.16, 5101.162, 5101.181, 5101.24, 5101.26, 5101.31, 5101.33, 5101.34, 5101.36, 5101.47, 5101.50, 5101.5212, 5101.5213, 5101.54, 5101.541, 5101.544, 5101.571, 5101.573, 5101.58, 5101.60, 5101.61, 5101.84, 5103.02, 5103.03, 5104.04, 5104.041, 5104.051, 5104.30, 5104.32, 5104.341, 5104.35, 5104.39, 5104.42, 5107.05, 5107.16, 5107.17, 5107.78, 5108.04, 5108.07, 5111.01, 5111.028, 5111.032, 5111.033, 5111.034, 5111.06, 5111.084, 5111.16, 5111.176, 5111.20, 5111.21, 5111.211, 5111.231, 5111.232, 5111.24, 5111.243, 5111.25, 5111.261, 5111.65, 5111.651, 5111.68, 5111.681, 5111.685, 5111.686, 5111.688, 5111.705, 5111.85, 5111.851, 5111.874, 5111.875, 5111.89, 5111.891, 5111.894, 5111.971, 5112.03, 5112.08, 5112.17, 5112.30, 5112.31, 5112.37, 5112.39, 5115.20, 5115.22, 5115.23, 5119.16, 5119.61, 5120.032, 5120.033, 5120.09, 5122.31, 5123.049, 5123.0412, 5123.0413, 5123.0417, 5123.19, 5126.044, 5126.05, 5126.054, 5126.055, 5126.0512, 5126.19, 5126.24, 5139.43, 5153.163, 5501.04, 5502.01, 5502.12, 5502.14, 5502.15, 5505.15, 5701.11, 5703.21, 5703.37, 5703.80, 5705.01, 5705.211, 5705.214, 5705.25, 5705.29, 5705.341, 5705.37, 5709.62, 5709.63, 5709.632, 5711.33, 5715.02, 5715.251, 5715.26, 5717.03, 5717.04, 5721.01, 5721.32, 5721.33, 5722.02, 5722.04, 5722.21, 5723.04, 5725.18, 5725.98, 5727.81, 5727.811, 5727.84, 5728.12, 5729.03, 5729.98, 5733.01, 5733.04, 5733.47, 5733.98, 5735.142, 5739.01, 5739.02, 5739.03, 5739.033, 5739.09, 5739.131, 5743.15, 5743.61, 5747.01, 5747.13, 5747.16, 5747.18, 5747.76, 5747.98, 5748.02, 5748.03, 5749.02, 5749.12, 5751.01, 5751.011, 5751.012, 5751.013, 5751.02, 5751.03, 5751.04, 5751.05, 5751.051, 5751.06, 5751.08, 5751.09, 5751.20, 5751.21, 5751.22, 5751.23, 5911.10, 5913.051, 5913.09, 6103.01, 6103.02, 6109.21, 6111.04, 6111.044, 6111.44, 6117.01, 6117.02, 6119.011, and 6301.03 be amended; sections 173.43 (173.422), 1517.14 (1547.81), 1517.16 (1547.82), 1517.17 (1547.83), 1517.18 (1547.84), 3313.174 (3313.82), 3319.233 (3333.049), 5101.5110 (5101.5111), 5111.019 (5111.0120), and 5111.688 (5111.689) be amended for the purpose of adopting new section numbers as indicated in parentheses; new sections 173.43, 3301.0712, 3319.222, 5101.5110, 5111.688, and 5112.371 and sections 5.2265, 9.317, 103.24, 107.19, 111.26, 111.27, 121.375, 122.042, 122.12, 122.121, 122.85, 124.393, 124.821, 124.822, 124.86, 125.181, 125.20, 126.10, 126.50, 126.501, 126.502, 126.503, 126.504, 126.505, 126.506, 126.797, 131.38, 133.022, 148.05

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

150.051, 153.013, 166.22, 166.28, 173.28, 173.402, 173.403, 173.421, 173.423, 173.424, 173.425, 173.431, 173.432, 173.433, 173.434, 173.501, 173.70, 175.052, 175.30, 175.31, 175.32, **305.20**, **319.24**, 717.25, 901.041, 901.91, 927.54, 943.031, 1321.521, 1321.522, 1321.531, 1321.532, 1321.533, 1321.534, 1321.535, 1321.536, 1321.552, 1321.591, 1321.592, 1321.593, 1321.594, 1322.022, 1322.023, 1322.024, 1322.025, 1322.065, 1547.02, 1547.85, 1547.86, 1547.87, 1733.252, **2505.122**, 3119.371, 3301.041, 3301.076, 3301.0719, 3301.0721, 3301.122, 3301.60, 3301.61, 3301.62, 3301.63, 3301.64, 3301.82, 3301.90, 3301.95, 3304.181, 3304.182, 3306.01, 3306.011, 3306.012, 3306.02, 3306.03, 3306.04, 3306.05, 3306.051, 3306.052, 3306.06, 3306.07, 3306.08, 3306.09, 3306.091, 3306.10, 3306.11, 3306.12, 3306.13, 3306.18, 3306.19, 3306.191, 3306.192, 3306.21, 3306.22, 3306.25, 3306.29, 3306.291, 3306.292, 3306.30, 3306.31, 3306.33, 3306.34, 3306.35, 3306.40, 3306.50, 3306.51, 3306.52, 3306.53, 3306.54, 3306.55, 3306.56, 3306.57, 3306.58, 3310.15, 3311.0510, 3313.6015, 3313.719, 3313.821, 3313.822, 3313.83, 3313.86, 3314.028, 3314.088, 3314.44, 3317.018, 3318.312, 3319.223, 3319.611, 3319.612, 3319.70, 3319.71, 3321.041, 3326.39, 3333.048, 3333.39, 3333.391, 3333.392, 3333.90, 3334.111, 3345.36, 3353.09, 3353.20, 3354.24, 3365.12, 3375.79, **3701.0211**, **3701.136**, 3701.611, 3702.592, 3702.593, 3702.594, **3705.031**, 3709.092, 3715.041, 3721.511, 3721.512, 3721.513, 3722.022, 3734.282, 3770.21, 3793.21, 3903.77, 3923.241, 3923.582, 3923.90, 3923.91, 4113.11, 4123.446, **4301.85**, 4501.243, 4501.29, 4503.548, 4503.563, 4582.71, 4755.061, 4781.16, 4781.17, 4781.18, 4781.19, 4781.20, 4781.21, 4781.22, 4781.23, 4781.24, 4781.25, 4781.99, 5101.073, **5101.504**, **5101.5210**, 5101.542, 5111.0121, 5111.0210, 5111.092, 5111.233, **5111.236**, 5111.262, 5111.861, 5111.88, 5111.881, 5111.882, 5111.883, 5111.884, 5111.885, 5111.886, 5111.887, 5111.888, 5111.889, 5111.8810, 5111.8811, 5112.40, 5112.41, 5112.42, 5112.43, 5112.44, 5112.45, 5112.46, 5112.47, 5112.48, 5119.613, 5119.621, 5123.193, 5123.197, 5155.38, 5505.152, 5525.26, **5537.051**, 5705.219, 5705.2110, 5705.2111, 5725.33, 5729.16, 5733.58, 5733.59, 5739.051, 5747.66, 5751.014, 5911.11, 5919.20, 5919.36, and 6119.091 of the Revised Code be enacted; and Section 6 of H.B. 364 of the 124th General Assembly be amended and Section 6 of H.B. 364 of the 124th General Assembly be amended to codify as section 3314.027 of the Revised Code to read as follows:

Sec. 5.2265. The month of August is designated as "Ohio Military Family Month."

Sec. 7.12. Whenever any legal publication is required to be made **The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.**

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
 Ted Strickland, Governor

in a newspaper published in a municipal corporation, county, or other political subdivision, the newspaper shall also be a newspaper of general circulation in the municipal corporation, county, or other political subdivision, without further restriction or limitation upon a selection of the newspaper to be used. If no newspaper is published in such municipal corporation, county, or other political subdivision, such legal publication shall be made in any newspaper of general circulation therein. If there are less than two newspapers published in any municipal corporation, county, or other political subdivision in the manner defined by this section, then any legal publication required by law to be made in a newspaper published in a municipal corporation, county, or other political subdivision may be made in any newspaper regularly issued at stated intervals from a known office of publication located within the municipal corporation, county, or other political subdivision. As used in this section, a known office of publication is a public office where the business of the newspaper is transacted during the usual business hours, and such office shall be shown by the publication itself.

In addition to all other requirements, a newspaper or newspaper of general circulation, except those publications performing the functions described in section 2701.09 of the Revised Code for a period of one year immediately preceding any such publication required to be made, shall be a publication bearing a title or name, regularly issued as frequently as once a week ~~for a definite price or consideration paid for by not less than fifty per cent of those to whom distribution is made, having a second class mailing privilege,~~ being not less than four pages, published continuously during the immediately preceding one-year period, and circulated generally in the political subdivision in which it is published. Such publication must be of a type to which the general public resorts for passing events of a political, religious, commercial, and social nature, current happenings, announcements, miscellaneous reading matter, advertisements, and other notices ~~that has at least twenty-five per cent editorial, nonadvertising content, exclusive of inserts, measured relative to total publication space, and an audited circulation to at least fifty per cent of the households in the newspaper's retail trade zone as defined by the audit.~~

~~Any notice required to be published in a newspaper of general circulation may appear on an insert placed in such a newspaper. A responsible party who is required to publish such a notice shall consider various advertising media to determine which media might reach the intended public most broadly. The responsible party need publish the notice in only one qualified medium to meet the requirements of law.~~

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

receives under divisions (E) and (F) of this section into the general revenue fund of the state.

(2) The Ohio ethics commission shall deposit all receipts, including, but not limited to, fees it receives under divisions (E) and (F) of this section and all moneys it receives from settlements under division (G) of section 102.06 of the Revised Code, into the Ohio ethics commission fund, which is hereby created in the state treasury. All moneys credited to the fund shall be used solely for expenses related to the operation and statutory functions of the commission.

(3) The joint legislative ethics committee shall deposit all receipts it receives from the payment of financial disclosure statement filing fees under divisions (E) and (F) of this section into the joint legislative ethics committee investigative fund.

(H) Division (A) of this section does not apply to a person elected or appointed to the office of precinct, ward, or district committee member under Chapter 3517. of the Revised Code; a presidential elector; a delegate to a national convention; village or township officials and employees; any physician or psychiatrist who is paid a salary or wage in accordance with schedule C of section 124.15 or schedule E-2 of section 124.152 of the Revised Code and whose primary duties do not require the exercise of administrative discretion; or any member of a board, commission, or bureau of any county or city who receives less than one thousand dollars per year for serving in that position.

Sec. 103.24. There is hereby created in the state treasury the legislative agency telephone usage fund. Money collected from the house of representatives, senate, and joint legislative ethics committee shall be credited to the fund, along with money collected from any other legislative agency that the legislative service commission determines should account for calls made from the agency's telephones through the fund. The fund shall be used to pay the telephone carriers for all such telephone calls.

Sec. 105.41. (A) There is hereby created in the legislative branch of government the capitol square review and advisory board, consisting of thirteen members as follows:

- (1) Two members of the senate, appointed by the president of the senate, both of whom shall not be members of the same political party;
- (2) Two members of the house of representatives, appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives, both of whom shall not be members of the same political party;
- (3) Five members appointed by the governor, with the advice and consent of the senate, not more than three of whom shall be members of the

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

officers, and shall organize by selecting a chairperson and other officers as it considers necessary. Board members shall serve without compensation but shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

(D) The board may do any of the following:

(1) Employ or hire on a consulting basis professional, technical, and clerical employees as are necessary for the performance of its duties. **All employees of the board are in the unclassified civil service and serve at the pleasure of the board. For the purposes of sections 718.04 and 4117.01 of the Revised Code, employees of the board shall be considered employees of the general assembly.**

Handwritten initials

(2) Hold public hearings at times and places as determined by the board;

(3) Adopt, amend, or rescind rules necessary to accomplish the duties of the board as set forth in this section;

(4) Sponsor, conduct, and support such social events as the board may authorize and consider appropriate for the employees of the board, employees and members of the general assembly, employees of persons under contract with the board or otherwise engaged to perform services on the premises of capitol square, or other persons as the board may consider appropriate. Subject to the requirements of Chapter 4303. of the Revised Code, the board may provide beer, wine, and intoxicating liquor, with or without charge, for those events and may use funds only from the sale of goods and services fund to purchase the beer, wine, and intoxicating liquor the board provides;

(5) Purchase a warehouse in which to store items of the capitol collection trust and, whenever necessary, equipment or other property of the board.

(E) The board shall do all of the following:

(1) Have sole authority to coordinate and approve any improvements, additions, and renovations that are made to the capitol square. The improvements shall include, but not be limited to, the placement of monuments and sculpture on the capitol grounds.

(2) Subject to section 3353.07 of the Revised Code, operate the capitol square, and have sole authority to regulate all uses of the capitol square. The uses shall include, but not be limited to, the casual and recreational use of the capitol square.

(3) Employ, fix the compensation of, and prescribe the duties of the executive director of the board and other employees the board considers necessary for the performance of its powers and duties;

(4) Establish and maintain the capitol collection trust. The capitol

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

improvement fund the amount needed to pay such construction, renovation, or other costs. The director then shall transfer the amount needed from the excess balance of the underground parking garage operating fund.

(K) As the operation and maintenance of the capitol square constitute essential government functions of a public purpose, the board shall not be required to pay taxes or assessments upon the square, upon any property acquired or used by the board under this section, or upon any income generated by the operation of the square.

~~(L) Section 125.18 of the Revised Code does not apply to the board.~~ *JS*

~~(M)~~ As used in this section, "capitol square" means the capitol building, senate building, capitol atrium, capitol grounds, the state underground parking garage, and the warehouse owned by the board.

~~(M)(N)~~ The capitol annex shall be known as the senate building. *JS*

~~Sec. 107.19. The governor shall have no power to issue any executive order that has previously been issued and that the federal trade commission, office of policy planning, bureau of economics, and bureau of competition has opined is anti-competitive and is in violation of anti-trust laws. Any such executive order shall be considered invalid and unenforceable.~~

Sec. 107.21. (A) As used in this section, "Appalachian region" means the following counties in this state ~~which that~~ have been designated as part of Appalachia by the federal Appalachian regional commission and ~~which that~~ have been geographically isolated and economically depressed: Adams, Ashtabula, Athens, Belmont, Brown, Carroll, Clermont, Columbiana, Coshocton, Gallia, Guernsey, Harrison, Highland, Hocking, Holmes, Jackson, Jefferson, Lawrence, Mahoning, Meigs, Monroe, Morgan, Muskingum, Noble, Perry, Pike, Ross, Scioto, Trumbull, Tuscarawas, Vinton, and Washington.

(B) There is hereby created in the department of development the governor's office of Appalachian Ohio. The governor shall designate the director of the governor's office of Appalachian Ohio. The director shall report directly to the office of the governor. On January 1, 1987, the governor shall designate the director to represent this state on the federal Appalachian regional commission. The director may appoint such employees as are necessary to exercise the powers and duties of this office. The director shall maintain local development districts as established within the Appalachian region for the purpose of regional planning for the distribution of funds from the Appalachian regional commission within the Appalachian region.

(C) The governor's office of Appalachian Ohio shall represent the interests of the Appalachian region in the government of this state. The

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

loaned, or otherwise obtained by the state for the governor's residence and that have been approved by the commission.

(B) The commission shall be responsible for the care, provision, repair, and placement of furnishings and other objects and accessories of the grounds and public areas of the first story of the governor's residence and for the care and placement of plants on the grounds. The commission shall not exercise its responsibility under this division by using prison labor. In exercising ~~this its~~ responsibility under this division, the commission shall preserve and seek to further establish all of the following:

- (1) The authentic ambiance and decor of the historic era during which the governor's residence was constructed;
- (2) The grounds as a representation of Ohio's natural ecosystems;
- (3) The heritage garden for all of the following purposes:
 - (a) To preserve, sustain, and encourage the use of native flora throughout the state;
 - (b) To replicate the state's physiographic regions, plant communities, and natural landscapes;
 - (c) To serve as an educational garden that demonstrates the artistic, industrial, political, horticultural, and geologic history of the state through the use of plants;
 - (d) To serve as a reservoir of rare species of plants from the physiographic regions of the state.

These duties shall not affect the obligation of the department of administrative services to provide for and adopt policies and procedures regarding the use, general maintenance, and operating expenses of the governor's residence. The department shall not use prison labor in providing for the general maintenance of the governor's residence.

(C) The commission shall consist of eleven members. One member shall be the director of administrative services or the director's designee, who shall serve during the director's term of office and shall serve as chairperson. One member shall be the director of the Ohio historical society or the director's designee, who shall serve during the director's term of office and shall serve as vice-chairperson. One member shall represent the Columbus landmarks foundation. One member shall represent the Bexley historical society. One member shall be the mayor of the city of Bexley, who shall serve during the mayor's term of office. One member shall be the chief executive officer of the Franklin park conservatory joint recreation district, who shall serve during the term of employment as chief executive officer. The remaining five members shall be appointed by the governor with the advice and consent of the senate. The five members appointed by the

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

shall promptly pay any such amount withheld to the auditor of state.

(E)(1) The auditor of state shall certify to the director of budget and management the amounts due or necessary for state agency audit costs and the director shall transfer the certified amounts from the general revenue fund to the public audit expense fund - intrastate if either of the following apply:

(a) A state agency that has ceased operation has not paid audit costs pursuant to this section.

(b) In the judgment of the auditor of state, the money appropriated for the cost of biennial audits of state agencies is not sufficient to conduct an appropriate audit program.

(2) If a local public office ceases operation and has not paid audit costs pursuant to this section, one of the following shall occur:

(a) In the case of costs due for an audit performed by the auditor or state, the auditor of state shall certify to the director the amounts due for these costs, and the director shall transfer the certified amounts from the general revenue fund to the public audit expense fund-local government.

(b) In the case of costs due for an audit performed by an independent auditor, the independent auditor shall notify the auditor of state of the amounts due for these costs. The auditor of state shall certify the amounts to the director, and the director shall transfer the certified amounts from the general revenue fund to the credit of the public audit expense fund-independent auditors, which is hereby created in the state treasury for the purpose of reimbursing independent auditors for unpaid audit costs pursuant to this section.

JK

Sec. 118.05. (A) Pursuant to the powers of the general assembly and for the purposes of this chapter, upon the occurrence of a fiscal emergency in any municipal corporation, county, or township, as determined pursuant to section 118.04 of the Revised Code, there is established, with respect to that municipal corporation, county, or township, a body both corporate and politic constituting an agency and instrumentality of the state and performing essential governmental functions of the state to be known as the "financial planning and supervision commission for (name of municipal corporation, county, or township)," which, in that name, may exercise all authority vested in such a commission by this chapter. A separate commission is established with respect to each municipal corporation, county, or township as to which there is a fiscal emergency as determined under this chapter.

(B) A commission shall consist of the following seven voting members:

(1) Four ex officio members: the treasurer of state; the director of

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

Weights and measures.

In the department of natural resources:

Chiefs of divisions as follows:

~~Water;~~

Mineral resources management;

Forestry;

Natural areas and preserves;

Wildlife;

Geological survey;

Parks and recreation;

Watercraft;

Recycling and litter prevention;

Soil and water ~~conservation~~ resources;

~~Real estate and land management;~~

Engineering.

In the department of insurance:

Deputy superintendent of insurance;

Assistant superintendent of insurance, technical;

Assistant superintendent of insurance, administrative;

Assistant superintendent of insurance, research.

Sec. 121.07. (A) Except as otherwise provided in this division, the officers mentioned in sections 121.04 and 121.05 of the Revised Code and the offices and divisions they administer shall be under the direction, supervision, and control of the directors of their respective departments, and shall perform such duties as the directors prescribe. In performing or exercising any of the examination or regulatory functions, powers, or duties vested by Title XI, Chapters 1733. and 1761., and sections 1315.01 to 1315.18 of the Revised Code in the superintendent of financial institutions, the superintendent of financial institutions and the division of financial institutions are independent of and are not subject to the control of the department or the director of commerce. In the absence of the superintendent of financial institutions, a deputy superintendent, or in the absence of both the superintendent and an available deputy superintendent, the director of commerce, may, for a limited period of time, perform or exercise any of those functions, powers, or duties, if written authorization is given by the superintendent of financial institutions.

SS
 JS
 JS
 JS

(B) With the approval of the governor, the director of each department shall establish divisions within the department, and distribute the work of the department among such divisions. Each officer created by section 121.04 of the Revised Code shall be the head of such a division.

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
 Ted Strickland, Governor

under section 125.081 of the Revised Code, shall be awarded to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder on each item in accordance with section 9.312 of the Revised Code. When the contract is for meat products as defined in section 918.01 of the Revised Code or poultry products as defined in section 918.21 of the Revised Code, only those bids received from vendors offering products from establishments on the current list of meat and poultry vendors established and maintained by the director of administrative services under section 125.17 of the Revised Code shall be eligible for acceptance. The department of administrative services may accept or reject any or all bids in whole or by items, except that when the contract is for services or products available from a qualified nonprofit agency pursuant to sections 125.60 to 125.6012 or 4115.31 to 4115.35 of the Revised Code, the contract shall be awarded to that agency.

(B) Prior to awarding a contract under division (A) of this section, the department of administrative services or the state agency responsible for evaluating a contract for the purchase of products shall evaluate the bids received according to the criteria and procedures established pursuant to divisions (C)(1) and (2) of section 125.09 of the Revised Code for determining if a product is produced or mined in the United States and if a product is produced or mined in this state. The department or other state agency shall first remove bids that offer products that have not been or that will not be produced or mined in the United States. From among the remaining bids, the department or other state agency shall select the lowest responsive and responsible bid, in accordance with section 9.312 of the Revised Code, from among the bids that offer products that have been produced or mined in this state where sufficient competition can be generated within this state to ensure that compliance with these requirements will not result in an excessive price for the product or acquiring a disproportionately inferior product. If there are two four or more ²⁸ qualified bids that offer products that have been produced or mined in this state, it shall be deemed that there is sufficient competition to prevent an excessive price for the product or the acquiring of a disproportionately inferior product.

(C) Division (B) of this section applies to contracts for which competitive bidding is waived by the controlling board.

(D) Division (B) of this section does not apply to the purchase by the division of liquor control of spirituous liquor.

(E) The director of administrative services shall publish in the form of a model act for use by counties, townships, municipal corporations, or any other political subdivision described in division (B) of section 125.04 of the

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

standards, or project-alignment criteria.

(E) The office of information technology may operate technology services for state agencies in accordance with this chapter.

(F) With the approval of the director of administrative services, the office of information technology may establish cooperative agreements with federal and local government agencies and state agencies that are not under the authority of the governor for the provision of technology services and the development of technology projects.

(G) As used in this section:

(1) "Personal information" has the same meaning as in section 149.45 of the Revised Code.

(2) "State agency" means every organized body, office, or agency established by the laws of the state for the exercise of any function of state government, other than any state-supported institution of higher education, the office of the auditor of state, treasurer of state, secretary of state, or attorney general, the adjutant general's department, the bureau of workers' compensation, the industrial commission, the public employees retirement system, the Ohio police and fire pension fund, the state teachers retirement system, the school employees retirement system, the state highway patrol retirement system, the general assembly or any legislative agency, or the courts or any judicial agency.

Sec. 125.181. The director of administrative services shall establish the state information technology investment board within the department of administrative services. The board shall consist of representatives from various state elective offices and state agencies, including the office of budget and management. The board shall identify and recommend to the state chief information officer opportunities for consolidation and cost-savings measures relating to information technology. Members of the board are not entitled to compensation for their services.

Sec. 125.20. (A) Within one hundred eighty days after the effective date of this section, the director of administrative services shall establish an electronic site accessible through the internet to publish the following:

(1) A database containing each state employee's year-to-date gross pay and pay from the most recent pay period. The database shall contain searchable fields including the name of the agency, position title, and employee name. *JS*

(2) A database containing agency expenditures for goods and services that shall contain searchable fields including the name of the agency, expenditure amount, category of good or service for which an expenditure is made, and contractor or vendor name. *JS*

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

(3) A database containing tax credits issued by the director of development to business entities that shall contain searchable fields including the name under which the tax credit is known, the name of the entity receiving the credit, and the county in which the credit recipient's principal place of business in this state is located.

JS
JS
JS

(B) Daily, each executive agency shall provide to the department of administrative services information to be published in the databases under division (A) of this section. The director of administrative services may adopt rules governing the means by which information is submitted and databases are updated.

JS

Sec. 125.831. As used in sections 125.831 to 125.834 of the Revised Code:

(A) "Alternative fuel" means any of the following fuels used in a motor vehicle:

- (1) E85 blend fuel;
- (2) Blended biodiesel;
- (3) Natural gas;
- (4) Liquefied petroleum gas;
- (5) Hydrogen;
- (6) Compressed air;
- (7) Any power source, including electricity;

~~(7)~~(8) Any fuel not described in divisions (A)(1) to ~~(6)~~(7) of this section that the United States department of energy determines, by final rule, to be substantially not petroleum, and that would yield substantial energy security and environmental benefits.

(B) "Biodiesel" means a mono-alkyl ester combustible liquid fuel that is derived from vegetable oils or animal fats, or any combination of those reagents that meets the American society for testing and materials specification for biodiesel fuel (B100) blend stock distillate fuels and any other standards that the director of administrative services adopts by rule.

(C) "Blended biodiesel" means a blend of biodiesel with petroleum based diesel fuel in which the resultant product contains not less than twenty per cent biodiesel that meets the American society for testing and materials specification for blended diesel fuel and any other standards that the director of administrative services adopts by rule.

(D) "Diesel fuel" means any liquid fuel that is capable of use in discrete form or as a blend component in the operation of engines of the diesel type.

(E) "E85 blend fuel" means fuel containing eighty-five per cent or more ethanol as defined in section 5733.46 of the Revised Code or containing any other percentage of not less than seventy per cent ethanol if the United

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

control over the expenditures of the state. The director shall also furnish statements the governor requests showing the condition of any other fund.

If the governor ascertains that the available revenue receipts and balances for the general revenue fund for the current fiscal year will in all probability be less than the appropriations for the year, ~~he~~ the governor shall issue such orders to the state agencies as will prevent their expenditures and incurred obligations from exceeding such revenue receipts and balances.

If the governor ascertains that the available revenue receipts and balances for any fund other than the general revenue fund for the current fiscal year will in all probability be less than the appropriations for the year, ~~he~~ the governor may issue such orders to the state agencies as will prevent their expenditures and incurred obligations from exceeding such revenue receipts and balances.

If the governor determines that the available revenue receipts and balances in any fund or across funds will likely be less than the appropriations for the year, the governor may declare a fiscal emergency and may issue such orders as necessary to the director of budget and management to reduce expenditures, or to the director of administrative services to implement personnel actions consistent therewith, including, but not limited to, mandatory cost savings days under section 124.392 of the Revised Code.

As used in this section, "expenditures and incurred obligations" includes all moneys expended or obligated pursuant to appropriations by the general assembly that are calculated and distributed pursuant to a distribution formula in law.

Sec. 126.10. No certificate of participation or any similar debt instrument may be obtained or entered into by the state without the prior approval of the general assembly.

JS

Sec. 126.21. (A) The director of budget and management shall do all of the following:

- (1) Keep all necessary accounting records;
- (2) Prescribe and maintain the accounting system of the state and establish appropriate accounting procedures and charts of accounts;
- (3) Establish procedures for the use of written, electronic, optical, or other communications media for approving and reviewing payment vouchers;
- (4) Reconcile, in the case of any variation between the amount of any appropriation and the aggregate amount of items of the appropriation, with the advice and assistance of the state agency affected by it and the legislative service commission, totals so as to correspond in the aggregate

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

(3) The amount to be lent from the facilities establishment fund will not exceed seventy-five per cent of the total allowable costs of the eligible project, except that if any part of the amount to be lent from the facilities establishment fund is derived from the issuance and sale of project financing obligations the amount to be lent will not exceed ninety per cent of the total allowable costs of the eligible project;

(4) The eligible project could not be achieved in the local area in which it is to be located if the portion of the project to be financed by the loan instead were to be financed by a loan guaranteed under section 166.06 of the Revised Code;

(5) The repayment of the loan from the facilities establishment fund will be adequately secured by a mortgage, assignment, pledge, or lien provided for under section 9.661 of the Revised Code, at such level of priority as the director may require;

(6) The borrower will hold at least a ten per cent equity interest in the eligible project at the time the loan is made.

(B) The determinations of the director under division (A) of this section shall be conclusive for purposes of the validity of a loan commitment evidenced by a loan agreement signed by the director.

(C) In furtherance of the public policy of this chapter, there is hereby established the micro-lending program for the purpose of paying the allowable costs of eligible projects of eligible small businesses. From any amount of the facilities establishment fund that the general assembly designates for the purpose of the micro-lending program, the director of development shall, either directly or indirectly, make loans under this section to eligible small businesses. The director shall establish eligibility criteria and loan terms for the program that supplement eligibility criteria and loan terms otherwise prescribed for loans under this section, and may prescribe reduced service charges and fees. For the purpose of lending under the micro-lending program, the director of development shall give precedence to projects of eligible small businesses that foster the development of small entrepreneurial enterprises, notwithstanding the considerations prescribed by divisions (A)(1)(a) and (b) of section 166.05 of the Revised Code to the extent those considerations otherwise may have the effect of disqualifying projects of eligible small businesses. The director may enter into agreements with for-profit or non-profit organizations in this state to originate and administer loans made under the micro-lending program.

(D) Fees, charges, rates of interest, times of payment of interest and principal, and other terms, conditions, and provisions of and security for

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

loans made from the facilities establishment fund pursuant to this section shall be such as the director determines to be appropriate and in furtherance of the purpose for which the loans are made. The moneys used in making such loans shall be disbursed from the facilities establishment fund upon order of the director. The director shall give special consideration in setting the required job creation ratios and interest rates for loans that are for voluntary actions.

~~(D)(E)~~ The director may take actions necessary or appropriate to collect or otherwise deal with any loan made under this section, including any action authorized by section 9.661 of the Revised Code. #

~~(E)(F)~~ The director may fix service charges for the making of a loan. Such charges shall be payable at such times and place and in such amounts and manner as may be prescribed by the director. #

Sec. 166.08. (A) As used in this chapter:

(1) "Bond proceedings" means the resolution, order, trust agreement, indenture, lease, and other agreements, amendments and supplements to the foregoing, or any one or more or combination thereof, authorizing or providing for the terms and conditions applicable to, or providing for the security or liquidity of, obligations issued pursuant to this section, and the provisions contained in such obligations.

(2) "Bond service charges" means principal, including mandatory sinking fund requirements for retirement of obligations, and interest, and redemption premium, if any, required to be paid by the state on obligations.

(3) "Bond service fund" means the applicable fund and accounts therein created for and pledged to the payment of bond service charges, which may be, or may be part of, the economic development bond service fund created by division (S) of this section including all moneys and investments, and earnings from investments, credited and to be credited thereto.

(4) "Issuing authority" means the treasurer of state, or the officer who by law performs the functions of such officer.

(5) "Obligations" means bonds, notes, or other evidence of obligation including interest coupons pertaining thereto, issued pursuant to this section.

(6) "Pledged receipts" means all receipts of the state representing the gross profit on the sale of spirituous liquor, as referred to in division (B)(4) of section 4301.10 of the Revised Code, after paying all costs and expenses of the division of liquor control and providing an adequate working capital reserve for the division of liquor control as provided in that division, but excluding the sum required by the second paragraph of section 4301.12 of the Revised Code, as in effect on May 2, 1980, to be paid into the state treasury; moneys accruing to the state from the lease, sale, or other

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

Revised Code.

Sec. 303.213. (A) As used in this section, "small wind farm" means wind turbines and associated facilities ~~that are interconnected with a medium voltage power collection system and communications network and are with a single interconnection to the electrical grid and~~ designed for, or capable of, operation at an aggregate capacity of less than five megawatts.

(B) Notwithstanding division (A) of section 303.211 of the Revised Code, sections 303.01 to 303.25 of the Revised Code confer power on a board of county commissioners or board of zoning appeals to adopt zoning regulations governing the location, erection, construction, reconstruction, change, alteration, maintenance, removal, use, or enlargement of any small wind farm, whether publicly or privately owned, or the use of land for that purpose, which regulations may be more strict than the regulations prescribed in rules adopted under division (C)(2) of section 4906.20 of the Revised Code.

(C) The designation under this section of a small wind farm as a public utility for purposes of sections 303.01 to 303.25 of the Revised Code shall not affect the classification of a small wind farm for purposes of state or local taxation.

(D) Nothing in division (C) of this section shall be construed as affecting the classification of a telecommunications tower as defined in division (B) or (E) of section 303.211 of the Revised Code or any other public utility for purposes of state and local taxation.

Sec. 305.20. For purposes of a statute or regulation that requires a county to publish a notice, advertisement, list, or other information more than once in a newspaper of general circulation, the second and subsequent publications are satisfied by posting the notice, advertisement, list, or other information on the county's internet web site if the first newspaper publication meets all the following conditions:

(A) It states that the notice, advertisement, list, or other information is posted on the county's internet web site;

(B) It includes the county's internet address on the world wide web; and

(C) It includes instructions for accessing the notice, advertisement, list, or other information on the county's internet web site.

A notice, advertisement, list, or other information posted on a county's internet web site shall provide the same information as does the newspaper publication of the notice, advertisement, list, or other information except that the conditions outlined in divisions (A) to (C) of this section do not need to be included.

If a county does not operate and maintain, or ceases to operate and

JS

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

maintain an internet web site, the county is not entitled to publish a notice, advertisement, list, or other information under this section and shall comply with the statutory publication requirements that otherwise apply to the notice, advertisement, list, or other information.

For purposes of this section, "county" means a board of county commissioners, a county elected official, or any contracting authority as defined in section 307.92 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 307.626. (A) By the first day of April of each year, the person convening the child fatality review board shall prepare and submit to the Ohio department of health a report that ~~includes all of~~ summarizes the following information with respect to ~~each the child death~~ deaths that ~~was~~ were reviewed by the review board in the previous calendar year:

- (1) The cause of death;
- (2) Factors contributing to death;
- (3) Age;
- (4) Sex;
- (5) Race;
- (6) The geographic location of death;
- (7) The year of death.

The report shall specify the number of child deaths that ~~have not been reviewed since the effective date of this section~~ were not reviewed during the previous calendar year.

The report may include recommendations for actions that might prevent other deaths, as well as any other information the review board determines should be included.

(B) Reports prepared under division (A) of this section shall be considered public records under section 149.43 of the Revised Code.

(C) The child fatality review board shall submit individual data with respect to each child death review into the Ohio department of health child death review database or the national child death review database. The individual data shall include the information specified in division (A) of this section and any other information the board considers relevant to the review. Individual data related to a child death review that is contained in the Ohio department of health child death review database is not a public record under section 149.43 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 307.629. (A) Except as provided in sections 5153.171 to 5153.173 of the Revised Code, any information, document, or report presented to a child fatality review board, all statements made by review board members during meetings of the review board, ~~and~~ all work products of the review board, ~~and child fatality review data submitted by the child fatality review~~

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

are rendered by an officer or employee, whose salary or per diem compensation is paid by the county, the applicable legal fees and any other extraordinary expenses, including overtime, provided for the service shall be taxed in the costs in the case and, when collected, shall be paid into the general fund of the county.

The sheriff shall charge the same fees for the execution of process issued in any other state as the sheriff charges for the execution of process of a substantively similar nature that is issued in this state.

Sec. 311.42. (A) Each county shall establish in the county treasury a sheriff's concealed handgun license issuance expense fund. The sheriff of that county shall deposit into that fund all fees paid by applicants for the issuance or renewal of a license or duplicate license to carry a concealed handgun under section 2923.125 of the Revised Code and all fees paid by the person seeking a temporary emergency license to carry a concealed handgun under section 2923.1213 of the Revised Code. ~~The county shall distribute the fees deposited into the fund in accordance with the specifications prescribed by the Ohio peace officer training commission under division (C) of section 109.731 of the Revised Code~~ distribute all fees deposited into the fund except forty dollars of each fee paid by an applicant under division (B) of section 2923.125 of the Revised Code, fifteen dollars of each fee paid under section 2923.1213 of the Revised Code, and thirty-five dollars of each fee paid under division (F) of section 2923.125 of the Revised Code to the attorney general to be used to pay the cost of background checks performed by the bureau of criminal identification and investigation and the federal bureau of investigation and to cover administrative costs associated with issuing the license.

(B) The sheriff, with the approval of the board of county commissioners, may expend any county portion of the fees deposited into the sheriff's concealed handgun license issuance expense fund for any costs incurred by the sheriff in connection with performing any administrative functions related to the issuance of licenses or temporary emergency licenses to carry a concealed handgun under section 2923.125 or 2923.1213 of the Revised Code, including, but not limited to, personnel expenses and the costs of any handgun safety education program that the sheriff chooses to fund.

Sec. 319.24. A county auditor shall use the information received pursuant to section 3705.031 of the Revised Code to assist the auditor in verifying whether real property or a manufactured or mobile home is eligible for a reduction in property taxes under division (A) or (B) of section 323.152 of the Revised Code or section 4503.065 of the Revised Code.

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

the public at large, as determined by the superintendent.

(7) Any deficiencies ~~certified~~ identified by the ~~director~~ superintendent under section 1751.04 of the Revised Code have been corrected.

(8) The applicant has deposited securities as set forth in section 1751.27 of the Revised Code.

(C) If an applicant elects to fulfill the requirements of division ~~(A)~~(B)(5) of this section through an agreement with other health insuring corporations or insurers, the agreement shall require those health insuring corporations or insurers to give thirty days' notice to the superintendent prior to cancellation or discontinuation of the agreement for any reason.

(D) A certificate of authority shall be denied only after compliance with the requirements of section 1751.36 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 1751.14. (A) ~~Any~~ Notwithstanding section 3901.71 of the Revised Code, any policy, contract, or agreement for health care services authorized by this chapter that is issued, delivered, or renewed in this state and that provides that coverage of an unmarried dependent child will terminate upon attainment of the limiting age for dependent children specified in the policy, contract, or agreement, shall also provide in substance that both of the following:

(1) Once an unmarried child has attained the limiting age for dependent children, as provided in the policy, contract, or agreement, upon the request of the subscriber, the health insuring corporation shall offer to cover the unmarried child until the child attains twenty-eight years of age if all of the following are true:

(a) The child is the natural child, stepchild, or adopted child of the subscriber.

(b) The child is a resident of this state or a full-time student at an accredited public or private institution of higher education.

(c) The child is not employed by an employer that offers any health benefit plan under which the child is eligible for coverage.

(d) After having attained the limiting age, the child has been continuously covered under any health benefit plan.

(e) The child is not eligible for coverage under the medicaid program established under Chapter 5111. of the Revised Code or the medicare program established under Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 42 U.S.C. 1395.

(2) That attainment of the limiting age for dependent children shall not operate to terminate the coverage of ~~the~~ a dependent child if the child is and continues to be both of the following:

~~(+)~~(a) Incapable of self-sustaining employment by reason of mental

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

~~full for docketing the cases or motions, making docket from term to term, indexing and entering appearances, issuing process, filing papers, entering rules, motions, orders, continuances, decrees, and judgments, making lists of causes on the regular docket for publication each year, making and certifying orders, decrees, and judgments of the court to other tribunals, and the issuing of mandates. Except as provided in division (B) of this section, the each case filed in the supreme court under the Rules of Practice of the Supreme Court. The party invoking the action of the court shall pay the filing fee to the clerk before the case or motion is docketed, and it shall be taxed as costs and recovered from the other party if the party invoking the action of the court succeeds, unless the court otherwise directs.~~

~~(B)(1) As used in this division, "prosecutor" has the same meaning as in section 2935.01 of the Revised Code.~~

~~(2) The clerk of the supreme court shall not charge to and collect from a prosecutor the forty dollar filing fee prescribed by division (A) of this section when all of the following circumstances apply:~~

~~(a) In accordance with the Rules of Practice of the Supreme Court of Ohio, an indigent defendant in a criminal action or proceeding files in the appropriate court of appeals a notice of appeal within thirty days from the date of the entry of the judgment or final order that is the subject of the appeal.~~

~~(b) The indigent defendant fails to file or offer for filing in the supreme court within thirty days from the date of the filing of the notice of appeal in the court of appeals, a copy of the notice of appeal supported by a memorandum in support of jurisdiction and other documentation and information as required by the Rules of Practice of the Supreme Court of Ohio.~~

~~(c) The prosecutor or a representative of the prosecutor associated with the criminal action or proceeding files a motion to docket and dismiss the appeal of the indigent defendant for lack of prosecution as authorized by the Rules of Practice of the Supreme Court of Ohio.~~

~~(d) The prosecutor states in the motion that the forty dollar filing fee does not accompany the motion because of the applicability of this division, and the clerk of the supreme court determines that this division applies. No filing fee or security deposit shall be charged to an indigent party upon determination of indigency by the supreme court pursuant to the Rules of Practice of the Supreme Court.~~

Sec. 2505.09. Except as provided in section 2505.11 or 2505.12 or another section of the Revised Code or in applicable rules governing courts, the perfection of an appeal including an administrative-related appeal, does ~~not~~

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Jim Strickland

not operate as a stay of execution until a stay of execution has been obtained pursuant to the Rules of Appellate Procedure or in another applicable manner, and a supersedeas bond is executed by the appellant to the appellee, with sufficient sureties and subject to section 2505.122 of the Revised Code in a sum that is not less than, if applicable, the cumulative total for all claims covered by the final order, judgment, or decree and interest involved, except that the bond shall not exceed fifty million dollars excluding interest and costs, as directed by the court that rendered the final order, judgment, or decree that is sought to be superseded or by the court to which the appeal is taken. That bond shall be conditioned as provided in section 2505.14 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 2505.12. An appellant is not required to give a supersedeas bond in connection with any of the following:

(A) An Perfection of an appeal by any of the following: *JS*

- (1) An executor, administrator, guardian, receiver, trustee, or trustee in bankruptcy who is acting in that person's trust capacity and who has given bond in this state, with surety according to law;
- (2) The state or any political subdivision of the state;
- (3) Any public officer of the state or of any of its political subdivisions who is suing or is sued solely in the public officer's representative capacity as that officer.

(B) An Perfection of an administrative-related appeal of a final order that is not for the payment of money. *JS*

Sec. 2505.122. An appellant who obtains a stay of execution pending the appeal of a final order, adjudication, or decision pursuant to section 2506.01 of the Revised Code shall simultaneously execute a supersedeas bond to the appellee, with sufficient sureties and in a sum that is equal to the cost of delay, increased cost of construction, legal expenses, loss of anticipated revenues, or the reasonable value of the matter at issue in the final order, adjudication, or decision, including any reasonable investment-backed expectations of the appellee. That bond shall be conditioned as provided in section 2505.14 of the Revised Code. *JS*

Sec. 2743.51. As used in sections 2743.51 to 2743.72 of the Revised Code:

(A) "Claimant" means both of the following categories of persons:

- (1) Any of the following persons who claim an award of reparations under sections 2743.51 to 2743.72 of the Revised Code:
 - (a) A victim who was one of the following at the time of the criminally injurious conduct:
 - (i) A resident of the United States;

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

of single plays necessary to accrue the redeemable vouchers required to obtain that prize; and

(d) Any redeemable vouchers or merchandise prizes are distributed at the site of the skill-based amusement machine at the time of play.

A card for the purchase of gasoline is a redeemable voucher for purposes of division (AAA)(1) of this section even if the skill-based amusement machine for the play of which the card is awarded is located at a place where gasoline may not be legally distributed to the public or the card is not redeemable at the location of, or at the time of playing, the skill-based amusement machine.

JS

(2) A device shall not be considered a skill-based amusement machine and shall be considered a slot machine if it pays cash or one or more of the following apply:

(a) The ability of a player to succeed at the game is impacted by the number or ratio of prior wins to prior losses of players playing the game.

(b) Any reward of redeemable vouchers is not based solely on the player achieving the object of the game or the ~~players~~ player's score;

(c) The outcome of the game, or the value of the redeemable voucher or merchandise prize awarded for winning the game, can be controlled by a source other than any player playing the game.

(d) The success of any player is or may be determined by a chance event that cannot be altered by player actions.

(e) The ability of any player to succeed at the game is determined by game features not visible or known to the player.

(f) The ability of the player to succeed at the game is impacted by the exercise of a skill that no reasonable player could exercise.

(3) All of the following apply to any machine that is operated as described in division (AAA)(1) of this section:

(a) As used in this section, "game" and "play" mean one event from the initial activation of the machine until the results of play are determined without payment of additional consideration. An individual utilizing a machine that involves a single game, play, contest, competition, or tournament may be awarded redeemable vouchers or merchandise prizes based on the results of play.

(b) Advance play for a single game, play, contest, competition, or tournament participation may be purchased. The cost of the contest, competition, or tournament participation may be greater than a single noncontest, competition, or tournament play.

(c) To the extent that the machine is used in a contest, competition, or tournament, that contest, competition, or tournament has a defined starting

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

~~revisions of the standards, to all school districts and community schools established under Chapter 3314. of the Revised Code. Any school district or community school may utilize the standards.~~

~~The department shall employ a full-time physical education coordinator to provide guidance and technical assistance to districts and community schools in implementing the standards adopted under this division. The superintendent of public instruction shall determine that the person employed as coordinator is qualified for the position, as demonstrated by possessing an adequate combination of education, license, and experience. The department shall hire a coordinator not later than October 31, 2007.~~

(C) The state board of education shall not adopt or revise any standards or curriculum in the area of health unless, by concurrent resolution, the standards, curriculum, or revisions are approved by both houses of the general assembly. Before the house of representatives or senate votes on a concurrent resolution approving health standards, curriculum, or revisions, its standing committee having jurisdiction over education legislation shall conduct at least one public hearing on the standards, curriculum, or revisions.

(D) ~~The state board shall not adopt a diagnostic assessment or achievement test for any grade level or subject area other than those specified in section 3301.079 of the Revised Code.~~

Sec. 3301.0719. (A) As used in this section, "business education" includes, but is not limited to, accounting, career development, economics and personal finance, entrepreneurship, information technology, management, and marketing.

(B) [Not later than July 1, 2010,] the state board of education shall adopt standards for business education in grades seven through twelve. The standards shall incorporate existing business education standards as appropriate to help guide instruction in the state's schools. The department shall provide the standards, and any revisions of the standards, to all school districts, community schools established under Chapter 3314. of the Revised Code, and STEM schools established under Chapter 3326, of the Revised Code. Any school district, community school or STEM school may utilize the standards. Standards adopted under this division shall supplement, and not supersede, academic content standards adopted under section 3301.079 of the Revised Code. 28

Sec. 3301.0721. The superintendent of public instruction shall develop a model curriculum for instruction in college and career readiness and financial literacy. The curriculum shall focus on grades seven through twelve, but the superintendent may include other grade levels. When the

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

Chapter 3314. of the Revised Code but otherwise would be assigned under section 3319.01 of the Revised Code to a building described in division (A)(1) of this section.

(4) The student is enrolled in a school building that is operated by the student's resident district or in a community school established under Chapter 3314. of the Revised Code and otherwise would be assigned under section 3319.01 of the Revised Code to a school building described in division (A)(1) of this section in the school year for which the scholarship is sought.

(5) The student is eligible to enroll in kindergarten in the school year for which a scholarship is sought, or is enrolled in a community school established under Chapter 3314. of the Revised Code, and all of the following apply to the student's resident district:

(a) The district has in force an intradistrict open enrollment policy under which no student in kindergarten or the community school student's grade level, respectively, is automatically assigned to a particular school building;

(b) In at least two of the three most recent ratings of school districts published prior to the first day of July of the school year for which a scholarship is sought, the district was declared to be in a state of academic emergency under section 3302.03 of the Revised Code;

(c) The district was not declared to be excellent or effective under that section in the most recent rating published prior to the first day of July of the school year for which a scholarship is sought.

(6) The student is enrolled in a new school building that is operated by the student's resident district and to which all of the following apply:

(a) The new building is open for instruction for its second or third school year.

(b) For the first school year that the new building was open for instruction, at least seventy-five per cent of the enrolled students had transferred directly from two or more school buildings that closed and to each of which all of the following apply:

(i) The closed buildings were operated by the same school district that operates the new building.

(ii) The closed buildings offered at least some of the grade levels that the new building also offers.

(iii) The closed buildings were declared, for at least two of their last three ratings under section 3302.03 of the Revised Code, to be in a state of academic emergency or academic watch.

(iv) The closed buildings were not declared to be excellent or effective in their last rating under section 3302.03 of the Revised Code.

JK

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

(c) If the new building is conducting its second school year of instruction, the building was declared, based on its first school year of instruction, to be in a state of academic emergency or academic watch under section 3302.03 of the Revised Code.

(d) If the new building is conducting its third school year of instruction, the building was declared, based on either its first or second school year of instruction, to be in a state of academic emergency or academic watch under section 3302.03 of the Revised Code, but was not declared to be excellent or effective under that section based on its second school year of instruction.

(7) The student is eligible to enroll in kindergarten in the school year for which a scholarship is sought and otherwise would be assigned under section 3319.01 of the Revised Code to a school building described in division (A)(6) of this section.

(8) The student is enrolled in a community school established under Chapter 3314, of the Revised Code but otherwise would be assigned under section 3319.01 of the Revised Code to a building described in division (A)(6) of this section.

JS

(B) A student who receives a scholarship under the educational choice scholarship pilot program remains an eligible student and may continue to receive scholarships in subsequent school years until the student completes grade twelve, so long as all of the following apply:

(1) The student's resident district remains the same, or the student transfers to a new resident district and otherwise would be assigned in the new resident district to a school building described in division (A)(1) or (6) of this section;

(2) The student takes each ~~state-test~~ assessment prescribed for the student's grade level under section 3301.0710 or 3301.0712 of the Revised Code while enrolled in a chartered nonpublic school;

(3) In each school year that the student is enrolled in a chartered nonpublic school, the student is absent from school for not more than twenty days that the school is open for instruction, not including excused absences.

(C) The department shall cease awarding first-time scholarships pursuant to divisions (A)(1) to (4) of this section with respect to a school building that, in the most recent ratings of school buildings published under section 3302.03 of the Revised Code prior to the first day of July of the school year, ceases to meet the criteria in division (A)(1) of this section. The department shall cease awarding first-time scholarships pursuant to division (A)(5) of this section with respect to a school district that, in the most recent ratings of school districts published under section 3302.03 of the Revised Code prior to the first day of July of the school year, ceases to meet the

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

criteria in division (A)(5) of this section. However, students who have received scholarships in the prior school year remain eligible students pursuant to division (B) of this section.

(D) The state board of education shall adopt rules defining excused absences for purposes of division (B)(3) of this section.

Sec. 3310.08. (A) The amount paid for an eligible student under the educational choice scholarship pilot program shall be the lesser of the tuition of the chartered nonpublic school in which the student is enrolled or the maximum amount prescribed in section 3310.09 of the Revised Code.

(B)(1) The department shall pay to the parent of each eligible student for whom a scholarship is awarded under the program, or to the student if at least eighteen years of age, periodic partial payments of the scholarship.

(2) The department shall proportionately reduce or terminate the payments for any student who withdraws from a chartered nonpublic school prior to the end of the school year.

(C)(1) The department shall deduct five thousand two hundred dollars from the payments made to each school district under ~~Chapter~~ Chapters 3306, and 3317. and, if necessary, sections 321.24 and 323.156 of the Revised Code ~~one of the following amounts, as applicable,~~ for each eligible student awarded a scholarship under the educational choice scholarship pilot program who is entitled under section 3313.64 or 3313.65 of the Revised Code to attend school in the district:

~~(a) For each scholarship student enrolled in kindergarten, two thousand seven hundred dollars;~~

~~(b) For each scholarship student enrolled in grades one to twelve, five thousand two hundred dollars.~~

The amount deducted under division (C)(1) of this section funds scholarships for students under both the educational choice scholarship pilot program and the pilot project scholarship program under sections 3313.974 to 3313.979 of the Revised Code.

(2) If the department reduces or terminates payments to a parent or a student, as prescribed in division (B)(2) of this section, and the student enrolls in the schools of the student's resident district or in a community school, established under Chapter 3314. of the Revised Code, before the end of the school year, the department shall proportionally restore to the resident district the amount deducted for that student under division (C)(1) of this section.

(D) In the case of any school district from which a deduction is made under division (C) of this section, the department shall disclose on the district's SF-3 form, or any successor to that form used to calculate a

district's state funding for operating expenses, a comparison of the following:

(1) The district's ~~state base cost~~ state share of the adequacy amount payment, as calculated under ~~division (A)(1) of section 3317.022~~ 3306.13 of the Revised Code ~~prior to making the adjustments under divisions (A)(2) and (3) of that section,~~ with the scholarship students included in the district's formula ADM;

(2) What the district's ~~state base cost~~ share of the adequacy amount payment would have been, as calculated under ~~division (A)(1) of that section prior to making the adjustments under divisions (A)(2) and (3) of that section,~~ if the scholarship students were not included in the district's formula ADM.

This comparison shall display both the aggregate difference between the amounts described in divisions (D)(1) and (2) of this section, and the quotient of that aggregate difference divided by the number of eligible students for whom deductions are made under division (C) of this section.

Sec. 3310.09. ~~(A)~~ The maximum amount awarded to an eligible student ~~in fiscal year 2007~~ under the educational choice scholarship pilot program shall be as follows:

~~(1)(A)~~ For grades kindergarten through eight, four thousand two five hundred fifty dollars;

~~(2)(B)~~ For grades nine through twelve, five thousand three hundred dollars.

JS
JS
JS

~~(B) In fiscal year 2008 and in each fiscal year thereafter, the maximum amount awarded under the program shall be the applicable maximum amount awarded in the previous fiscal year increased by the same percentage by which the general assembly increased the formula amount, as defined in section 3317.02 of the Revised Code, from the previous fiscal year.~~

Sec. 3310.11. (A) Only for the purpose of administering the educational choice scholarship pilot program, the department of education may request from any of the following entities the data verification code assigned under division (D)(2) of section 3301.0714 of the Revised Code to any student who is seeking a scholarship under the program:

- (1) The student's resident district;
- (2) If applicable, the community school in which that student is enrolled;
- (3) The independent contractor engaged to create and maintain student data verification codes.

(B) Upon a request by the department under division (A) of this section

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

rule of the state board for the program established under this section.

(E) The state board shall adopt rules under Chapter 119. of the Revised Code prescribing procedures necessary to implement this section, including, but not limited to, procedures and deadlines for parents to apply for scholarships, standards for registered private providers, and procedures for approval of entities as registered private providers.

Sec. 3311.059. The procedure prescribed in this section may be used in lieu of a transfer prescribed under section 3311.231 of the Revised Code.

(A) Subject to divisions (B) and (C) of this section, a board of education of a local school district may by a resolution approved by a majority of all its members propose to sever that local school district from the territory of the educational service center in which the local school district is currently included and to instead annex the local school district to the territory of another educational service center, the current territory of which is adjacent to the territory of the educational service center in which the local school district is currently included. The resolution shall promptly be filed with the governing board of each educational service center affected by the resolution and with the superintendent of public instruction.

(B) The resolution adopted under division (A) of this section shall not be effective unless it is approved by the state board of education. In deciding whether to approve the resolution, the state board shall consider the financial, staffing, programmatic, and other impacts of an the severance and annexation on both the school district and the educational service center to which the district is proposed to be annexed, and the service center in which the district is currently located, including the effect on cost of operation and the ability of that both service center centers to continue to deliver services in a cost-effective and efficient manner.

The state board shall not vote on whether to approve the resolution until it has been presented on its agenda, which is not a consent agenda, and heard before the state board at not fewer than two separate meetings of the state board. There shall be at least thirty days between the meeting at which the state board first hears the matter of the resolution and the meeting at which the state board votes on whether to approve the resolution. The state board shall provide for public testimony at each hearing on the matter of the resolution, shall provide written prior notice of each hearing to the governing board of both educational service centers affected by the proposed action, and shall attach to that written notice any documentation about the proposed action provided to the state board by the board of education of the local school district.

The severance of the local school district from one educational service center and its annexation to another educational service center under this

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

Handwritten initials and marks:
JH
JH
JH
JH
JH
JH
JH

from one educational service center and its annexation to another educational service center as provided in division (B) of this section, the governing board of each educational service center shall take such steps for the election of members of the governing board and for organization of the governing board as prescribed in Chapter 3313. of the Revised Code.

(E) If a school district is severed from one educational service center and annexed to another service center under this section, the board of education of that school district shall not propose a subsequent severance and annexation action under this section that would be effective sooner than five years after the effective date of the next previous severance and annexation action under this section.

Sec. 3311.0510. (A) If all of the local school districts that make up the territory of an educational service center have severed from the territory of that service center pursuant to section 3311.059 of the Revised Code, upon the effective date of the severance of the last remaining local school district to make up the territory of the service center, the governing board of that service center shall be abolished and such service center shall be dissolved by order of the superintendent of public instruction. The superintendent's order shall provide for the equitable division and disposition of the assets, property, debts, and obligations of the service center among the local school districts, of which the territory of the service center is or previously was made up, and the city and exempted village school districts with which the service center had agreements under section 3313.843 of the Revised Code for the service center's last fiscal year of operation. The superintendent's order shall provide that the tax duplicate of each of those school districts shall be bound for and assume the district's equitable share of the outstanding indebtedness of the service center. The superintendent's order is final and is not appealable.

Immediately upon the abolishment of the service center governing board pursuant to this section, the superintendent of public instruction shall appoint a qualified individual to administer the dissolution of the service center and to implement the terms of the superintendent's dissolution order. Prior to distributing assets to any school district under this section, but after paying in full other debts and obligations of the service center, the superintendent of public instruction may assess against the remaining assets of the service center the amount of the costs incurred by the department of education in performing the superintendent's duties under this division, including the fees, if any, owed to the individual appointed to administer the superintendent's dissolution order. Any excess cost incurred by the department under this division shall be divided equitably among the local

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

school districts, of which the territory of the service center is or previously was made up, and the city and exempted village school districts with which the service center had agreements under section 3313.843 of the Revised Code for the service center's last fiscal year of operation. Each district's share of that excess cost shall be bound against the tax duplicate of that district.

(B) A final audit of the former service center shall be performed in accordance with procedures established by the auditor of state.

(C) The public records of an educational service center that is dissolved under this section shall be transferred in accordance with this division. Public records maintained by the service center in connection with services provided by the service center to local school districts shall be transferred to each of the respective local school districts. Public records maintained by the service center in connection with services provided under an agreement with a city or exempted village school district pursuant to section 3313.843 of the Revised Code shall be transferred to each of the respective city or exempted village school districts. All other public records maintained by the service center at the time the service center ceases operations shall be transferred to the Ohio historical society for analysis and disposition by the society in its capacity as archives administrator for the state and its political subdivisions pursuant to division (C) of section 149.30 and section 149.31 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 3311.06. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Annexation" and "annexed" mean annexation for municipal purposes under sections 709.02 to 709.37 of the Revised Code.

(2) "Annexed territory" means territory that has been annexed for municipal purposes to a city served by an urban school district, but on September 24, 1986, has not been transferred to the urban school district.

(3) "Urban school district" means a city school district with an average daily membership for the 1985-1986 school year in excess of twenty thousand that is the school district of a city that contains annexed territory.

(4) "Annexation agreement" means an agreement entered into under division (F) of this section that has been approved by the state board of education or an agreement entered into prior to September 24, 1986, that meets the requirements of division (F) of this section and has been filed with the state board.

(B) The territory included within the boundaries of a city, local, exempted village, or joint vocational school district shall be contiguous except where a natural island forms an integral part of the district, where the state board of education authorizes a noncontiguous school district, as

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

count of thirteen thousand or more determined pursuant to section 3317.03 of the Revised Code that has not entered into one or more agreements pursuant to this section prior to July 1, 1993, unless the district's total student count did not exceed thirteen thousand at the time it entered into an initial agreement under this section.

(B) The board of education of a city or exempted village school district and the governing board of an educational service center may enter into an agreement, through adoption of identical resolutions, under which the educational service center governing board will provide services to the city or exempted village school district.

Services provided under the agreement shall be specified in the agreement, and may include any one or a combination of the following: supervisory teachers; in-service and continuing education programs for city or exempted village school district personnel; curriculum services as provided to the local school districts under the supervision of the service center governing board; research and development programs; academic instruction for which the governing board employs teachers pursuant to section 3319.02 of the Revised Code; and assistance in the provision of special accommodations and classes for students with disabilities. Services included in the agreement shall be provided to the city or exempted village district in the same manner they are provided to local school districts under the governing board's supervision, unless otherwise specified in the agreement. The city or exempted village board of education shall reimburse the educational service center governing board pursuant to section 3317.11 of the Revised Code.

(C) If an educational service center received funding under division (B) of former section 3317.11 or division (F) of section 3317.11 of the Revised Code for an agreement under this section involving a city school district whose total student count was less than thirteen thousand, the service center may continue to receive funding under that division for such an agreement in any subsequent year if the city district's total student count exceeds thirteen thousand. However, only the first thirteen thousand pupils in the formula ADM of such district shall be included in determining the amount of the per pupil subsidy the service center shall receive under division (F) of section 3317.11 of the Revised Code.

(D) Any If an educational service center that has received funding under division (F) of section 3317.11 of the Revised Code, or under division (B) of former section 3317.11 of the Revised Code as it existed prior to September 26, 2003, for services provided to a city or exempted village school district pursuant to an agreement entered into under this section is dissolved or is

JS

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

scheduled to be dissolved under section 3311.0510 of the Revised Code, the city or exempted village school district that entered into that agreement with the service center may enter into a new agreement under this section with another service center for the same or similar services. In that case, the other service center shall receive funding under division (F) of section 3317.11 of the Revised Code for services to that district for any subsequent year that the new agreement is in force. An agreement entered into under this division shall be effective on the first day of July following the date both the service center governing board and the city or exempted village school district board approved the agreement, unless the agreement is so approved after the initial service center is dissolved, in which case the agreement shall be effective on the date that both boards have approved the agreement.

JS

(E) Except for an agreement under division (D) of this section that is approved by the boards of the district and the new service center after the initial service center is dissolved, any agreement entered into pursuant to this section shall be valid only if a copy is filed with the department of education by the first day of the school year for which the agreement is in effect. An agreement under division (D) of this section that is approved by the boards of the district and the new service center after the initial service center is dissolved shall be valid only if a copy is filed with the department within ten days after both boards have approved the agreement.

JS

Sec. 3313.86. The board of education of each city, exempted village, local, and joint vocational school district and the governing authority of each chartered nonpublic school periodically shall review its policies and procedures to ensure the safety of students, employees, and other persons using a school building from any known hazards in the building or on building grounds that, in the judgment of the board or governing authority, pose an immediate risk to health or safety. The board or governing authority shall further ensure that its policies and procedures comply with all federal laws and regulations regarding health and safety applicable to school buildings.

Sec. 3313.976. (A) No private school may receive scholarship payments from parents pursuant to section 3313.979 of the Revised Code until the chief administrator of the private school registers the school with the superintendent of public instruction. The state superintendent shall register any school that meets the following requirements:

(1) The school is located within the boundaries of the pilot project school district;

(2) The school indicates in writing its commitment to follow all requirements for a state-sponsored scholarship program specified under

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09


 Ted Strickland, Governor

district where one or more students on the list is entitled to attend school, the number of students residing in that school district who were included in the department's report under section 3317.10 of the Revised Code. The department shall make this determination on the basis of information readily available to it. Upon making this determination and no later than ninety days after submission of the list by the community school, the department shall report to the state department of education the number of students on the list who reside in each school district who were included in the department's report under section 3317.10 of the Revised Code. In complying with this division, the department of job and family services shall not report to the state department of education any personally identifiable information on any student.

(L) The department of education shall adjust the amounts subtracted and paid under divisions (C) and (D) of this section to reflect any enrollment of students in community schools for less than the equivalent of a full school year. The state board of education within ninety days after April 8, 2003, shall adopt in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code rules governing the payments to community schools under this section and section 3314.13 of the Revised Code including initial payments in a school year and adjustments and reductions made in subsequent periodic payments to community schools and corresponding deductions from school district accounts as provided under divisions (C) and (D) of this section and section 3314.13 of the Revised Code. For purposes of this section and section 3314.13 of the Revised Code:

(1) A student shall be considered enrolled in the community school for any portion of the school year the student is participating at a college under Chapter 3365. of the Revised Code.

(2) A student shall be considered to be enrolled in a community school during a school year for the period of time beginning on the later of the date on which the school both has received documentation of the student's enrollment from a parent and the student has commenced participation in learning opportunities as defined in the contract with the sponsor, or thirty days prior to the date on which the student is entered into the education management information system established under section 3301.0714 of the Revised Code. For purposes of applying this division and division divisions (L)(3) and (4) of this section to a community school student, "learning opportunities" shall be defined in the contract, which shall describe both classroom-based and non-classroom-based learning opportunities and shall be in compliance with criteria and documentation requirements for student participation which shall be established by the department. Any student's

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09


 Ted Strickland, Governor

instruction time in non-classroom-based learning opportunities shall be certified by an employee of the community school. A student's enrollment shall be considered to cease on the date on which any of the following occur:

(a) The community school receives documentation from a parent terminating enrollment of the student.

(b) The community school is provided documentation of a student's enrollment in another public or private school.

(c) The community school ceases to offer learning opportunities to the student pursuant to the terms of the contract with the sponsor or the operation of any provision of this chapter.

(3) The department shall determine each community school student's percentage of full-time equivalency based on the percentage of learning opportunities offered by the community school to that student, reported either as number of hours or number of days, is of the total learning opportunities offered by the community school to a student who attends for the school's entire school year. However, no internet- or computer-based community school shall be credited for any time a student spends participating in learning opportunities beyond ten hours within any period of twenty-four consecutive hours. Whether it reports hours or days of learning opportunities, each community school shall offer not less than nine hundred twenty hours of learning opportunities during the school year.

(4) With respect to the calculation of full-time equivalency under division (L)(3) of this section, the department shall waive the number of hours or days of learning opportunities not offered to a student because the community school was closed during the school year due to disease epidemic, hazardous weather conditions, inoperability of school buses or other equipment necessary to the school's operation, damage to a school building, or other temporary circumstances due to utility failure rendering the school building unfit for school use, so long as the school was actually open for instruction with students in attendance during that school year for not less than the minimum number of hours required by this chapter. The department shall treat the school as if it were open for instruction with students in attendance during the hours or days waived under this division.

JS

(M) The department of education shall reduce the amounts paid under division (D) of this section to reflect payments made to colleges under division (B) of section 3365.07 of the Revised Code or through alternative funding agreements entered into under rules adopted under section 3365.12 of the Revised Code.

(N)(1) No student shall be considered enrolled in any internet- or

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

annually do all of the following:

(A) Calculate the adjusted valuation per pupil of each city, local, and exempted village school district according to the following formula:

The district's valuation per pupil -
[\$30,000 X (1 - the district's income factor)].

For purposes of this calculation:

(1) Except for a district with an open enrollment net gain that is ten per cent or more of its formula ADM, "valuation per pupil" for a district means its average taxable value, divided by its formula ADM for the previous fiscal year. "Valuation per pupil," for a district with an open enrollment net gain that is ten per cent or more of its formula ADM, means its average taxable value, divided by the sum of its formula ADM for the previous fiscal year plus its open enrollment net gain for the previous fiscal year.

(2) "Average taxable value" means the average of the sum of the amounts certified for a district under divisions (A)(1) and (2) of section 3317.021 of the Revised Code in the second, third, and fourth preceding fiscal years under divisions (A)(1) and (2) of section 3317.021 of the Revised Code. For a tangible personal property phase-out impacted district, "average taxable value" means the average of the sum of the amounts certified for the district under division (A)(1) and as public utility personal property under division (A)(2) of section 3317.021 of the Revised Code in the second, third, and fourth preceding fiscal years.

ff

ff

(3) "Entitled to attend school" means entitled to attend school in a city, local, or exempted village school district under section 3313.64 or 3313.65 of the Revised Code.

(4) "Formula ADM" and "income factor" have the same meanings as in section 3317.02 of the Revised Code.

(5) "Native student" has the same meaning as in section 3313.98 of the Revised Code.

(6) "Open enrollment net gain" for a district means (a) the number of the students entitled to attend school in another district but who are enrolled in the schools of the district under its open enrollment policy minus (b) the number of the district's native students who are enrolled in the schools of another district under the other district's open enrollment policy, both numbers as certified to the department under section 3313.981 of the Revised Code. If the difference is a negative number, the district's "open enrollment net gain" is zero.

(7) "Open enrollment policy" means an interdistrict open enrollment policy adopted under section 3313.98 of the Revised Code.

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland, Governor

(8) "Tangible personal property phase-out impacted district" means a school district for which the taxable value of its tangible personal property certified under division (A)(2) of section 3317.021 of the Revised Code for tax year 2005, excluding the taxable value of public utility personal property, made up twenty per cent or more of its total taxable value for tax year 2005 as certified under that section.

JS

(B) Calculate for each district the three-year average of the adjusted valuations per pupil calculated for the district for the current and two preceding fiscal years;

(C) Rank all such districts in order of adjusted valuation per pupil from the district with the lowest three-year average adjusted valuation per pupil to the district with the highest three-year average adjusted valuation per pupil;

(D) Divide such ranking into percentiles with the first percentile containing the one per cent of school districts having the lowest three-year average adjusted valuations per pupil and the one-hundredth percentile containing the one per cent of school districts having the highest three-year average adjusted valuations per pupil;

(E) Determine the school districts that have three-year average adjusted valuations per pupil that are greater than the median three-year average adjusted valuation per pupil for all school districts in the state;

(F) On or before the first day of September, certify the information described in divisions (A) to (E) of this section to the Ohio school facilities commission.

Sec. 3318.051. (A) Any city, exempted village, or local school district that commences a project under sections 3318.01 to 3318.20, 3318.36, 3318.37, or 3318.38 of the Revised Code on or after ~~the effective date of this section~~ September 5, 2006, need not levy the tax otherwise required under division (B) of section 3318.05 of the Revised Code, if the district board of education adopts a resolution petitioning the Ohio school facilities commission to approve the transfer of money in accordance with this section and the commission approves that transfer. If so approved, the commission and the district board shall enter into an agreement under which the board, in each of twenty-three consecutive years beginning in the year in which the board and the commission enter into the project agreement under section 3318.08 of the Revised Code, shall transfer into the maintenance fund required by division (D) of section 3318.05 of the Revised Code not less than an amount equal to one-half mill for each dollar of the district's valuation unless and until the agreement to make those transfers is rescinded by the district board pursuant to division (F) of this section.

(B) On the first day of July each year, or on an alternative date

The above boxed and initialed text was disapproved.

Date: 7-17-09

Ted Strickland
Ted Strickland Governor